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SENATOR DEAN FLOREZ:  ...I fully expect—that means that he’s going to sit through a good majority of this.

SENATOR JEFF DENHAM:  Absolutely.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I will be in and out as well, but I do want to thank Senator Denham.  It’s been an issue he’s been very concerned with.


Members, as you know, the issue of identifying and disposing of real property comes appropriately on the heels of the state’s fiscal condition when we are going to be looking at every single asset and asking the question whether or not it exceeds or whether there’s longer use for these properties.  The sheer volume of this inventory is overwhelming and there’s no doubt we have real property worth millions of dollars that is used for diverse public purposes, whether it be office buildings, educational facilities, correctional facilities, public parks, open roads, et cetera.

Over the last two decades, we’ve had various reports by the Little Hoover Commission, the State Auditor, that have detailed very critical findings in terms of how the state deals with the process of property management.  This committee has recognized a need for an overall hearing on the topic.


Today we’re going to be looking at, number one, whether or not the state is effectively managing and utilizing its real estate holdings; two, whether it has an accurate accounting of real property; and, three, whether there is an effective and responsive need under current law to make these properties more available when we have an economic crisis, such as we have today.


Today we have our State Auditor, Elaine Howle, to kick off the informational hearing on issues raised in the 2001 report which we believe are relevant to today’s discussion.  Obviously we also have Caltrans and General Services and the University of California who have some of the more high-profile property on the books, some of that which is donated to the state with some restrictions on sales.  We’d like to explore that as well. And we also have representatives from the Sierra Club and the Planning and Conservation League to come to the committee talking about the negative impact from their perspective on the environment, given the sale of some of these properties.


As members, you know the governor’s vetoed virtually every surplus property bill that’s landed on his desk which did not contain statutory CEQA exemptions to provide relief to the state.  We’re going to be talking a bit about that.  And at the end of this hearing, we’ll hear from Richard Ortiz, the mayor of the city of Soledad, who will describe Senator Denham’s effort to obtain state authorization to sell or lease to the city a portion of that correctional facility.

So I would like to thank our auditor again for joining us.  We very much appreciate it.  And if there’s any members that would like to make any opening comments, this would be that time.


Senator Wyland.


SENATOR MARK WYLAND:  Mr. Chairman, just briefly, I would hope that the testimony could be accompanied by some brief remarks, written remarks, so that those of us who may not be able to attend the entire hearing can also read a summary of the points made.  I think that would be very helpful.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Members, any other comments to start this?


Okay.  Madam Auditor, thank you for joining us.  We appreciate it, as always.


MS. ELAINE HOWLE:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman and Members.  And first of all, in response to Senator Wyland’s question, I wasn’t prepared to share but I can certainly make copies of my presentation available to the committee and I will do so when I return to the office later this morning.

What I’m going to be presenting to the committee is a little bit of information from a report that we issued back in 2001, so it is somewhat dated but I tried to pick out the areas, with assistance from Senator Florez’s staff or the committee staff, areas that perhaps are pertinent to the discussion today even though the audit was issued quite a few years ago.

One of the areas that we highlighted in the audit report was, there is no real, at that point in time—again, giving it in context, we issued this report in January of 2001—that there was no particular agency that had the authority to ensure that agencies are reviewing their properties and identifying consistently on an annual basis any surplus property.  DGS certainly has the responsibility to collect information and report information to the legislature, but they did not have the authority or the necessary authority at that time to require agencies to actually perform those annual reviews, nor did it have the authority to question some of the decisions that agencies were making regarding surplus property, decisions they were making to retain certain properties.


In addition to that, DGS not having the authority, they did not necessarily provide any guidance to state agencies.  They weren’t required to, again, because they didn’t have the responsibility or the authority to require the reviews or to question decisions that agencies were making.  So this was a concern that we raised in the report that there was no real central agency that had the responsibility and, most importantly, the authority to ensure that state agencies are reviewing properties and identifying surplus.


What we also found in looking at state agencies, we actually went out and looked at a certain number of state agencies in some high-cost areas, high-cost counties, and found that state agencies lacked effective processes for evaluating their need to keep properties they own and for identifying surplus properties.  So back in 2000 when we conducted this audit, we looked at 13 agencies that had very large landholdings in 15 high-cost counties, and we found that eight of those 13 agencies had not developed any kind of procedures to perform these annual reviews.  And in fact, only five agencies had conducted any kind of annual review.  Thank you.


Also, in looking at procedures, we found state agencies did not have adequate procedure for conducting annual reviews.  So of the eight agencies that had procedures, we didn’t think they were adequate.  When we asked for support for decisions they were making in identifying surplus property, five of those had not retained any of the evidence for us to be able to review it.  And then we also asked about land management plans.  Now at that time—again, I don’t know what the current requirements were—but at that time, back in 2000 when we conducted the work, there was no statewide mandate that required agencies, individual agencies, to have a land management plan.  Some agencies had on their own, basically, volition, prepared plans.  But at that time, there was no state mandate, and we found that most agencies, at least the ones we looked at, did not prepare, monitor, or update any type of land management plan.


The reason we felt these plans would be important is, they identified goals and strategies for managing land in California, land that the state acquires, and it would include information about the proposed use of that land, maintenance schedules, staffing needs, et cetera.  So again, we felt that that was an area that was important for the state to address.

With regard to disposing of surplus property, one of the things we heard back in 2000 when we conducted the audit, that state agencies had little incentive to identify and dispose of surplus property—the reason for that is, once that property was sold, the funds that the state of California received would be deposited in the state’s General Fund so agencies weren’t able to retain any of the funds that were obtained from the sale of surplus property.  So in the agencies’ minds, at least, those that we spoke to at that time, that was a disincentive for them.


We also looked at Caltrans who certainly, I’m sure you’re aware, Caltrans has a significant amount of land in California and they had their own certain responsibilities.  We looked at the Asset Management Branch of Caltrans’ headquarters.  They’re responsible for coordinating, compiling, and reporting on each district’s annual evaluation of real estate property holdings.  And what we found back in this audit that we issued again in January of 2001 that Caltrans’ management had really contributed to the failure.  We saw failure on the part of the district offices.  We went and visited about four or five district offices, and they were not consistently conducting reviews of property and what they called Annual Retention Reviews to make a determination as to whether or not these properties should be put on a surplus list or whether Caltrans needed to retain those properties for future development, et cetera.  We also looked at inventory reports that Caltrans had and we found that they were not reliable, and it hindered their efforts to review property retentions and make proper decisions about property that was held by the various districts that we visited.

We also felt, and looking at, we did a little bit of research during this audit, what other states.  As I talked a few moments ago about the fact that there was no state agency that really had the authority, we found in some of our research that other governments had accomplished identifying and disposing of surplus property more efficiently than California by having a centralized system rather than allowing individual agencies.  We actually talked to three states, and those states actually created in some cases a commission or a specific governing body that would have the authority to make the decisions regarding identifying surplus property and certainly making the decision to dispose of that property.  So those were the issues we identified in one particular chapter.  We had some recommendations.  We recommended the legislature should consider empowering an existing agency or creating a commission similar to those three states we talked to had done, that would have the authority and certain responsibilities as far as establishing standards for their frequency and content of property reviews, whether or not land management plans should be required by all agencies, what monitoring standards agencies should be complying with, and then having the ability to scrutinize decisions that were made regarding property retention.

We also tried to address or felt that the legislature should consider providing incentives.  There were some states that actually provided some incentives to state agencies as far as allowing them to keep a portion of the proceeds, not necessarily all of the proceeds but perhaps a portion of the proceeds from surplus property that had been disposed of.  And then we certainly had recommendations to Caltrans to make sure that their individual district offices are actively participating in and working together to administer those annual reviews and those retention reviews as far as making decisions about what properties should be retained and what properties should be disposed of.


We also had another section of this audit report where we really talked about, that there is a statewide property inventory.  This was an inventory system that was created at the direction of the legislature in 1988.  The legislation passed in ’87; DGS got this statewide inventory up and running in 1988.  However, we found some problems with the inventory. First of all, it didn’t include all of the property that it should.  Some agencies were not providing information to the Department of General Services so that DGS could input and include that information in the statewide property inventory.

One example that we had in the report was UC, and I can see from the agenda there are some representatives from UC.  But when we issued or did this work back in 2000, we found that that the statewide property inventory had been populated with information regarding the UC property back in 1988 but had not been updated since then.  So certainly, again, it kind of harkens back to what I talked about a few minute ago as far as DGS not having the authority.  They were relying on agencies to report their property so that DGS could get it into this property inventory so that the state would have, again, a centralized place to know what properties we own and where.


Also, looking at the statewide property inventory, it did not necessarily include all of the characteristics that it should.  And what I am referring to there is, with regard to specific parcels, we didn’t have complete or accurate data on how were the parcels being used if it was a parcel that, you know, that hadn’t been put in use yet, what was the anticipated use of the parcel and whether or not a particular agency intended to declare that parcel surplus.  So these are characteristics that needed to be in this statewide property inventory.  So we knew we had a parcel of land, but what was the intent or what is the current use for that particular property?


Also, the inventory didn’t include estimated values for the majority of the properties that were listed in the inventory, and it even included properties at that time when we conducted the audit that DGS was managing.  So they hadn’t even populated their own statewide property inventory and included information about the estimated value of certain properties.  Also looking at facilities that were included in the inventory, we found errors regarding the square footage, the size of facilities, and whether or not those facilities were actually occupied or available for sale or not being used.  So again, this property inventory really had a lot of inaccuracies and incomplete data, so it wasn’t serving the purpose I think that the legislature intended at that time.

What are the reasons?  Why is that property inventory incomplete and inaccurate?  Again, part of the responsibility falls with state agencies.  At that time what General Services was doing was providing a listing to the state agencies in California and saying, here’s what our inventory shows, our property inventory shows, that you, DGS—or Caltrans—have in your system, what that specific department was required to do or should be doing was reconciling that to their own records to make sure that that statewide property inventory was accurate.  But what we found—again, it’s a bit dated—it was fiscal year 1999-2000—of 137 agencies that DGS had sent information to, 39 of those agencies did not even return the—they didn’t return the reports to DGS, so DGS was not able to make any modifications that perhaps were necessary to that statewide property inventory.  So again, the mechanism for reconciling was not occurring.  So we spoke with some state agencies.  Part of the problem was that some of them were having to do this manually, and it was a very laborious process.  So some of them just basically sent an acknowledgement that nothing’s changed so they didn’t really go through the exercise of reconciling these properties.


Some state agencies indicated to us that there was a fee that DGS was charging to maintain this statewide property inventory and felt that that, in their minds—again, these are some state departments—that it was an disincentive because they were being charged by the number of properties that were in the database.  So the more properties in there, the more my agency’s going to be charged.  Again, this was something that some of the departments indicated was a problem for them.


In looking at—so that’s your statewide property inventory.  Now in addition to that, General Services had a surplus property database.  We took a look at that database, and the purpose of that database was to monitor specifically identified surplus property.  So we wanted to determine whether or not we felt or could determine whether that database was complete and accurate.  And the results were similar to the statewide property inventory.  The information in the database was incomplete and it was not accurate.  It did not have complete information regarding all surplus properties or what was called—and I think is currently called—underused property.  It didn’t always identify the units within DGS that would be responsible for disposing of properties.

There’s a surplus sales unit and then there was also an asset planning and enhancement branch.  Surplus sales was responsible for maintaining the status of properties that had actually been approved for disposal.


Asset planning and enhancement is working with either local agencies or the particular agency that the buyers—excuse me—the buyers of the property and local governments to perhaps obtain zoning, modified zoning requirements, to enhance the property so that it could be sold for perhaps a higher value than its current use or current value.  And those two units within DGS were not at that time communicating with one another and understanding what properties were collectively available for disposal.  Also, the database didn’t include the status of some of the properties, so we had identified some properties that had been approved for disposal.  We didn’t see them in that database.  So again, that database was not complete so we were operating—certainly were hindered in our ability to sell properties.


Then we also looked at, again, Caltrans and their databases.  We looked at four different inventory systems that Caltrans uses to track its real property.  We found that three of those four didn’t have correct records—again, inaccuracies in the databases, incomplete information, errors regarding the status of properties as to whether or not those properties are truly available or considered surplus and ready to be disposed or, you know, the opposite, that they were being on the disposal list where they perhaps should be retained by Caltrans for a particular purpose.

The last area that we identified in the report that I think is pertinent to this committee and the legislature is that there’s an annual reporting requirement, so the Department of General Services is required on an annual basis to prepare reports to the legislature that identified surplus property in California.  These reports are required to be submitted to the legislature.  At that time, there was no specific date as to when it should be sent to the legislature.  Now departments were required to report to DGS by December 31, so you think they need a little bit of time to compile the information and prepare it and send it to the legislature.

The first concern we identified when we conducted this audit back in 2000 was, the information was provided to DGS but the information from DGS, the annual report, didn’t get to the legislature until August of 2000, almost pretty much at the end of a legislative session but certainly close to the end of the calendar year as well.


Also, when we looked at the report, the report didn’t necessarily identify deficiencies, deficiencies that DGS was aware of, as far as the process in the system and the way the surplus property system was working in California and these could have been deficiencies that DGS could have brought to the legislature’s attention, so that in the event there was need for legislative change, the legislature could certainly assist with that, so we felt that that was a weakness in the report that was being submitted.


Also, with regard to Caltrans, at that time, Caltrans was not always submitting its information promptly to DGS so DGS could include that in the annual reports.  And then, again, when we looked at the report that Caltrans was submitting to DGS, we found inaccuracies in the report.  So again, it didn’t include all of the information.  So recommendations were specific to General Services—work with state agencies to identify the specific characteristics that we want to include in that statewide property inventory, so that when we’re using that inventory, it’s got all of the information that the state of California needs to make good decisions with regard to either retaining property or deciding to surplus that property and dispose of it.


We suggested some changes to methods for operating the inventory system to promote more efficiencies as far as reconciliations and verifying information that DGS was receiving from state agencies regarding property, to consider changing the funding mechanism, since that seemed to be a disincentive.  At least we heard that from a few state agencies as far as how they were charging to support the inventory.


And then General Services should implement a plan.  It had a plan to include in its surplus property database all unused and underused property, so let’s make sure we have a complete—our database is as complete as possible.


And then with regard to the reports to the legislature, certainly we felt that the reports needed to be more timely.  But equally important or perhaps more important, the information needed to be accurate and complete.  So working with state agencies to make sure that what DGS was receiving was accurate and the information they were receiving from Caltrans again contained correct information so that proper decisions could be made regarding disposal.


As the chair’s aware—I’m sure most of the Members of the Committee are aware—whenever we issue an audit report, agencies are required to respond to us 60-days, six months, and one year.  But I think, at the pleasure of the chair—but I was going to defer to the departments because our one-year response would be January 2002 which is quite dated, so there may be more relevant information coming from the agencies that are going to appear today, but I’ll certainly do my best to answer any questions you might have about this audit.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Thank you.  Very thorough and that’s exactly what we needed to do to start this.


Let’s go ahead and start with Senator Wyland.


SENATOR WYLAND:  Just briefly.  I am really impressed with that report.  It was complete; it went into great detail.  It covered virtually every area that ought to be covered, and my hope is that every member of this legislature can read that and that we can act on it.  I think you’ve done an excellent, excellent job there.

MS. HOWLE:  Thank you for the comments, and I’ve always said I have terrific staff, so it’s a compliment to my staff.  I thank you very much for those comments.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And I would agree with that, Senator Wyland.  I think the issue is—Senator Harman, go ahead.

SENATOR TOM HARMAN:  Thank you.  I just wanted to address one of the things that you talked about, of the underutilized property, and how do we identify it?  Because what happens, in my experience, is some of the departments, they have this property but they’ve had it for 30 or 40 or 50 years and it’s gone up significantly in value.  It would be appropriate, in my opinion, to dispose of that property, bring in some money, and they can go to some other location to perform the function that they’re performing with a substantial savings to the state of California.  You know, how do you get these departments to say, gee, you know, maybe if we moved somewhere else, we could save money?

Let me give you an illustration.  I’ve called my staff.  I may have a photograph in my office of this.  But down in Huntington Beach, right on the bluff, oceanfront property, the State Lands Commission purchased a piece of property there for $3,000 in 1943.  It’s worth $2 million today.  There’s about six employees that test oil from the offshore platforms there that could easily be done in some industrial park.  And right next door are million-dollar—actually, $2 million condominiums and homes that abut right up to these properties.  And yet, there’s great resistance to move.  I’ve talked to them about it.  They’ve, you know, said that this is essential that they stay there and stuff like that.  So those are the kind of properties that I think we should be looking for, in addition to the ones we’ve already declared surplus, but I’m concerned that there are these underutilized properties that we could relocate the activities of the state in those properties and relocate them to more efficient properties.  If you can keep an eye out for that, if you would.  Thank you.

SENATOR FLOREZ:   I think the issue from our vantage point is trying to understand from this report going forward with the department’s coming up in a few moments.

Really, from your vantage point as the auditor, what happens when we have audits like this that in many cases need to be acted on?  What’s the follow up from an oversight perspective?  I mean, what’s happened since this report, for your vantage point?
MS. HOWLE:  Well, as I indicated, prior to this year, agencies were required to report at 60-day, six months, and one year, and then kind of, as I’ve said in other hearings, kind of fallen off the radar.  There’s new legislation that Senator Speier authored that now requires my office to, after that one year, if we feel the agencies have not fully implemented the recommendations, to put them on notice that they need to continue to respond to us, and we are required by statute, that same statute, to report to the legislature by January 15 of each year.  So I think oversight has been strengthened by that.  This audit clearly was done several years ago, and we haven’t done additional follow up.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  And how do you make the assessment of what you’ll follow up with or not?  So in other words, if we have a hearing today, we’re going to go over hopefully some of the numbers from your audit and going forward.  And so do you make those assessments then on what you hear, or do you just kind of randomly pick a department and say, you know, this is something we need to report back to the legislature on?

MS. HOWLE:  We don’t necessarily randomly pick.  What we have done is we’ve tried to identify those particular issue areas that are important from a policy perspective, public safety perspective, and certainly from cost-effectiveness, whether or not we’ve made recommendations that we believe would save the state of California a certain amount of dollars.  What we typically try to do, however, is follow up on an audit that’s, you know, less than a couple of years old as opposed to something that we had done six or seven years ago.  I mean, looking at this last night and preparing for the hearings like this would be a great audit to follow up on, but it is somewhat dated.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  It would, and I guess the couple of questions now, and we’ll go and hear from the other folks, but, number, one, it is a dated audit.  There should be follow up on it, and we are an oversight committee, at least over at DGS, over some of these issues.  And I guess the issue I would have, given that, is that Senator Battin put in a bill to create an independent commission.  It didn’t get through the Assembly.  Various bills have been introduced by Senator Denham and others that kind of move on the issue of surplus property, and then we have a report from your office a couple of years ago obviously that tell us that we have quite a bit of lag in terms of reporting a lot of inaccuracies, in many cases inventories, reviews that don’t give us a complete picture.  And we in the legislature are somewhat frustrated, frustrated in the sense that we look at your report as our only guide, if you will, through this maze, called DGS, Caltrans, and in this case today, University of California.

How would you suggest, from an auditor’s point of view, that the legislature get at this?  In other words, what—if you were doing an audit of the legislature and say the legislature isn’t adequately staffed—we don’t have a committee structure that is reflective of actually going through this process ourselves and getting some picture of where we’re at—I can’t tell you how many times we’ve had a hearing where all of us want to see a book that gives us all of the state surplus property, how old it is, what the value is, as Senator Harmon just said a moment ago, so we can make some judgments here; we can actually, a policy group, make some judgments in what ought to be let go and what shouldn’t.
As we head into this debate, this surplus issue, obviously, we have a huge deficit.  We’re going to be sitting around here for a little bit, talking about how to get out of it, but we still don’t have the book; we still don’t have what the surplus and what isn’t, what’s good inventory and what’s not.  The data seems to still reflect your audit.

What is the legislature—what is your recommendation for the legislature to do this?  I mean, we can’t ask you to do this for us, can we, in terms of this year’s budget?

MS. HOWLE:  Well, you know, quite honestly, Senator, I’m not sure.  Typically what we do is, we try to follow up on audits within a couple of years, but this may be a circumstance I would ask that I be able to speak with my staff, particularly, my chief counsel, because we may be able to—and again, I don’t know for sure—we may be able to follow up on this report if the committee directs us.  We want to know answers to certain specific questions and then go back in and talk to DGS and find out what Caltrans has done as far as responding to this audit report.  Certainly oversight hearings are very important.  I think the new process that we are now required to comply with as far as any agency that hasn’t implemented recommendation after a year—I mean, the attention that that drew from state agencies this last year was quite honestly remarkable and it was—I think it’s great because I think it has certainly strengthened our ability to provide information to the legislature and made it clear to the state agencies that, you know, you can’t wait us out for a year and then not do anything.  I mean, I think for the most part, most agencies try to do the best they can, but that certainly is going to strengthen my office’s oversight authority and certainly the legislature since the audits come to me through the legislature.

But what I can do is talk to my staff, certainly my chief counsel, because I would need to talk with her about, do we actually have the authority to go back in after a certain number of years have lapsed.  But perhaps at the direction of this committee to follow up on certain specific recommendations, we may be able to…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well, I think we may have to do that at the end of this hearing.  Members, as we follow along from the Caltrans perspective, from DGS’s perspective, I mean, I think the auditor, you’ve given us from very good parameters in which to ask some very critical questions on—so where are we after this?  And if not, I do know that part of this budget issue will be surplus property.  There’s not doubt, Senator Denham, being Senator Harmon, being key votes on the budget this year.  I mean, I think this has to be part of the mix.  There’s no doubt that this absolutely has to be part of the mix.  But the issue is, we have an audit report that tells us that we still have problems identifying, estimating, looking at anticipated use or values.  And without that information, it’s very difficult.  We get stymied here in the legislature for making a concrete, overall, comprehensive approach.  Senator Denham got criticized pretty heavily yesterday in our Appropriations Committee for taking a, you know, one-swing-at-a-time approach to taking surplus properties off.
There’s no other way for us to do it, quite frankly.  We have no way comprehensively to look at a list.  I’m sure Senator Denham would have liked to introduced a comprehensive surplus property bill.  But, unfortunately, we don’t have that data.  Your report tells us we’re not clear on the accuracy of that particular data.  So I think we may ask the auditor to go and revisit this for us.  And if you can get with your staff to see the timeframe for that…

MS. HOWLE:  I’d be happy to do that.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Obviously our timeframe is, with the May revise coming out a couple days from now, the governor, you know, making some exotic ways to solve the budget crisis which is to sell the Lottery, I would simply say, sell our surplus property before we sell the Lottery.  I mean, let’s talk about tangible assets here that we have on the books today before we look at an asset we have not yet valued, don’t understand its value, and ultimately, I think every Republican and Democrats would agree here in this budget process that one way to fix this budget going forward will be, I believe, some attempt by the governor to look at the leasing or the selling of the Lottery.
It’s frustrating for this committee because we have jurisdiction over DGS and the Lottery, and we see a whole slew of bills through here that try to sell tangible properties, and Senator Harmon mentioned a great one a moment ago, you know—you know, what we bought at its value and what it is now—but we have no way to get—it’s very frustrating.  We have no book in which to look at and to really sit down and negotiate, so I hope that you can consider that and talk to your staff about it and go forward.

Senator Denham, you have some questions?

SENATOR JEFF DENHAM:  Is there a justification process that you’ve seen from any department, any of them, that as you’re having them report the data, that they can actually justify not only the sale of the property or the purchase of that property?  But after many, many decades, still being able to justify many of those properties that may have outlived their usefulness, may have been, from Caltrans’ perspective, may have been a staging area during one period and now it’s a golf course or the UC system that may have been given property in Tahiti but now it’s a resort in Tahiti for the UC system?  Is there a justification process or a recommendation of a justification process that you have looked at?

MS. HOWLE:  I’m not aware, Senator Denham, of a justification process.  And referring back to the audit we did—and again, it’s dated—that was one of the issues we had, was there was not an agency in California, even though DGS was responsible for creating the statewide property inventory and reporting on an annual basis to the legislature, they did not have the authority to, number one, require agencies to conduct their annual reviews or, number two, to even question whether or not a particular property was, should be retained or is being underutilized or not used at all.  So we had issues with that when we issued the report back in January 2001.  I don’t know if anything has changed, quite honestly, since then.  We haven’t looked at it.
SENATOR DENHAM:  Had you seen a justification process on any of the various leases that you’ve seen from each of these different departments?
MS. HOWLE:  I don’t have an answer to that question and I don’t know.

SENATOR DENHAM:  If you could also discuss what type of obstacles that you’ve seen that the state—obstacles that the state has in selling its property?

MS. HOWLE:  Well, one of the items that we talked about in the report was the disincentive, that agencies had a disincentive because, if they identified surplus property, the state sold that property, the funding went to the state’s General Fund and some of those—even though that benefits the state of California as a whole, I as a particular agency, at least some of the agencies we spoke with at that time, felt that that was a disincentive because they weren’t necessarily benefiting from the sale of that property.
The other area that we touched on in the report—and I don’t have a lot of detail but I can certainly get back to you about it—was, there were some agencies that were reluctant to sell the property because there was a certain order in which the property needed to be considered and, again, I don’t remember the specifics and I apologize for that, where we had an example in the report where the military department had some excess property but they were reluctant to sell it because they were going to be forced to sell it to local government at a value lower than what they felt they should be able to sell it for, and I apologize if that’s confusing.  I would need to get to the specific example in the report, but I recall looking at that last night.  So that was something…
SENATOR DENHAM:  Was the issue that they were going to have to sell it to local government for less than they valued the property at, or was the issue that the military for that example was going to have more money in a cleanup than what they would actually receive back in the sale?

MS. HOWLE:  I found the paragraph, so let me read portions of it.  “Even state agencies that are able to retain…”

SENATOR DENHAM:  What page?

MS. HOWLE:  It’s on Page 39 of the report.  I didn’t realize you had a copy.  I apologize.  It’s the paragraph at the bottom.  This is the section where we talk about incentives, so we have a paragraph that starts, “Even agencies that are able to retain the proceeds from the sale are sometimes disinclined.  The situation occurs when other state or local agencies seek to obtain the proper for-less-than-fair-market value or for no compensation,” and then we go on discuss the city of Santa Cruz began efforts to acquire an armory for military, and the military decided to keep the property to avoid giving it up for less than what they felt it was worth.
Again, I apologize.  I reviewed this just the other evening.  I haven’t had the opportunity to go back and understand whether there’s a statutory requirement or what specific, what rationale there is for requiring state agencies to do that, to work with locals..  But that was clearly something that, when we conducted this audit, was a disincentive for agencies.  They didn’t want to have to dispose of the property if they were going to get what they felt was less than even fair market value for that property, and I don’t know if that’s still the case or not.

SENATOR DENHAM:  And what about—I’ve seen in certain occasions where a property may not be needed by a department any longer, and there may be other departments that don’t want to see the sale of that property, and so they will pick it up and hold onto it for a few decades, and then they decide that department decides they don’t need it, and another department picks it up so ultimately we have agency by agency swapping properties and we still get no benefit out of it as a state.

MS. HOWLE:  I don’t recall that being an issue that we identified in this report.  I’ve not heard of that, so I can’t really speak to that.

SENATOR DENHAM:  What about the leasing of property?  I know that there have been a number of bills.  Many of us up here at this dais have presented where we have properties that we feel should be sold, that maybe at some point in time declared surplus.  There may be a buyer at fair market value if the state’s decision is to lease the property.  Can you comment on that, please?

MS. HOWLE:  Again, we didn’t look at leases as part of this report  We do look at leases as part of our annual financial audit that we do, and I can see what my staff have as far as information related to that, but I don’t have anything with me today to be able to comment on that but I’ll see what we can get for you on that.

SENATOR DENHAM:  Thank you.  Yes, I mean, I number of these have come up year after year and we’ve seen a lot of properties that initially were bills that were supposed to sell the property and then they’ve become a lease.  I think all of us would be interested in following up on what those leases were and whether or not they were sweetheart deals for certain agencies or certain districts.  We want to see a fair process throughout the state.

The last I have on obstacles of sale, I know that Caltrans and the UC system may be somewhat different animals as far as the sale of property, and we’re going to hear from Caltrans here in a little bit.  But specifically the UC process for disposal of property, again, the property in Tahiti or Hawaii or the most recent purchase—you see Mexico—could you discuss the obstacles of sale on those types of properties that may have at one point been a gift to the state but now has become a drain on either General Fund or a drain on the UC system itself?

MS. HOWLE:  Again, I apologize.  We didn’t look at that as far as we used UC as one specific example in the report related to the statewide property inventory, but we didn’t necessarily look at the UC system and its process for identifying and disposing of surplus property so I apologize for that.

SENATOR DENHAM:  Thank you.  Well, we’ll follow up with a list of questions after this.  But I would make the request, that as you take a look at the UC system in particular, as you talked about the disincentives, one of the incentives I know for the UC system is, if their budget is cut through the legislature, that we may want to give them the opportunity to sell some of those properties as an incentive to offset that cut, but we will be looking at different incentives so that each of the different departments actually have an opportunity to behold in this year’s budget as well as future years.

As Senator Florez said, we certainly want to see what can be sold this year to deal with this year’s budget crisis.  We want to have a realistic number on properties that may be sold relative to this budget, in this current year.  But also our concern goes well beyond this year—I mean, I think, for the next five years, maybe the next decade—we believe that further deficits may be coming.  We’d like to see what can be sold off next year and the following year.
And one of the criticisms that has continued to come up came up on the last bill on the Cow Palace is, Is this the right time with the real estate market on a decline?  We’d also like to see numbers that may or may not justify the sale of these properties based on the market in its current scenario.  I believe that any time is probably the right time to sell something we don’t use, but certainly we want to be able to address that criticism as well.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Members, any other, any other questions?  I think what we’ll do is, we will get you a letter, if possible, maybe requesting and outlining, you know, what we think needs to further occur.  And from a timeline perspective, if you would get back to us in terms of what’s achievable.  I mean, at the end of the day, if you’ve got a lot on your docket and, I believe, you’re part of that 10 percent cut as well, correct?

MS. HOWLE:  I hope not.  (Laughter)

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Ten percent across the board and we’re done.  I think it’s very difficult for us to—as I think Senator Denham said, we really need to get a long-term plan here on some of these properties.  I do know that there would probably be more incentive if we were to look at some of the budgets where land is being held; and instead of making a 10 percent cut, we made a 30 percent cut and ask them to make the 20 percent up on land sales.

SENATOR DENHAM:  Absolutely.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And I think an incentive would be for those departments to say, if we want to continue to operate to certain folks, we’re going to have to really now, rather than keep this land and keep it off the table, is to try to actively incentivize ourselves to go out and see what we can get rid of, and right now there’s no incentive to do that.  And I know that’s more of a stick approach, but it seems the carrot approach hasn’t really worked.

SENATOR DENHAM:  We’re under a short timeframe.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.

SENATOR DENHAM:  And we’ve got some quick decisions that we need to make.  And just one question and follow up, we will follow up with a list of questions that we’re going to need answers on as quick as possible, as this May revise comes out tomorrow and we’re going to start dealing with the budget.  Are there any obstacles that you foresee, I mean, just different departments that we may need to contact at the same time so that we’re not waiting 60 days or six months or a year?  I mean, we are, I think, all very focused on addressing in particular this year’s budget so we’re going to need a pretty immediate response, and we want to make sure that you have every tool that you need and every cooperation from every department that you’re receiving.
MS. HOWLE:  Yes, I don’t foresee any obstacles at this point.  I think, as I indicated to Senator Florez, I need to talk to my staff and determine what authority and how much we can look at.  I mean, typically, what our authority is, as far as issuing an audit report, is following up on specific information that we’ve identified in this report.  And then there may be additional questions that the committee has to the extent we can.  We could answer those questions, but we would have to keep the scope focused on what we have done in the past so we can’t necessarily go out and do additional work.

What I would suggest, though, is—and I don’t know who from DGS is going to be here today to get as much information as you can from the Department of General Services now.  Mr. Kempton’s in the audience, I saw, so I know Caltrans would be available to give you some information as well.  My office, as far as coordination and cooperation from the administration, it’s been very positive and I wouldn’t expect it to be any different in this case.
SENATOR DENHAM:  Fantastic.  Well, that’s good news and I think that Senator Florez and I would—in fact, everybody on this committee, I think, we would all be united and that we would ask, as this list of questions comes out, if there’s not full cooperation, that you immediately notify us.  In fact, I’d even go as far as to say, because of the expediency of this issue with the budget, that as the questions come out, that you go to each of the different departments and ask that you also copy Senator Florez and I so that we can be judges of how quick that information is being turned around because we’re going to be asked by our caucuses on this particular issue whether or not we can count on scoring any properties into this year’s budget debate or some or multiple and how big is this.  And so we’re going to be looking back and have demands placed on us by our caucuses.  We want to be able to get that information back quickly as well.  So we want to make sure that you’re getting everything that you need to give us accurate information on a timely basis.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Thank you very much.

MS. HOWLE:  Thank you.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  We appreciate it.  And please get with your staff and let us know what’s achievable, and we can get the parameter of going beyond the questions asked in the last report.  We totally get that, so that might be an offline discussion that we will have to get to.  But if you could—I know your staff is also listening over at the State Auditor’s Office to this proceeding—but these next two agencies might give us some indication of how far we’ve actually really gotten since that report, so we appreciate it very much.  Thank you.

Okay.  If we could, let’s have the Department of Transportation, Will Kempton; Mike Webb, who is with the Department of General Services; and Happy Chastain; and Allen Meacham from the University of California.  Let’s just all do this at the same time, if we could.

And, of course, we’ll start with Caltrans, if possible.

MR. WILL KEMPTON:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman and Members.  Will Kempton, director of the California Department of Transportation.  I do really appreciate the opportunity to report to you on our efforts associated with excess property disposal, and I’ve dealt with a number of the members  individually on this issue.  I know Senator Denham has been long engaged in the effort, and we’ve had discussions on this.  And Senator Harman sat with another member of your house, Senator Correa, at a hearing we held down in Orange County.  I believe it was in November of 2006.  We got a pretty good spanking at that hearing and, frankly, it was deserved.  The committee was able to point out significant problems with our inventory system, with the accuracy of that system, with the fact that the department was not moving expeditiously to dispose of properties.

Now there’s an explanation for that.  It’s not an excuse, but we have tended to focus on the project delivery side of the house, that is, we have the same right-of-way staff that is doing property disposal as is doing the purchase of property for our ongoing program.  And it’s unfortunate that the emphasis has been on building new project work at the expense of holding properties that should have been disposed of.

I’m well aware, and I’ve read the state audit, that Ms. Howle discussed with you in detail.  And again, the governor, as part of his efforts to create a more responsive state government, did in fact issue an executive order which I haven’t heard reference that I can recall today, Executive Order S-10-04, in which he also espoused many of the principles that you’re talking about in terms of moving rapidly to dispose of property that’s not needed. 

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And when was that executive order issued?

MR. KEMPTON:  That was in 2004.  I don’t have the exact date, but I’ll be happy to get you that, Mr. Chairman.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  How much excess property has been sold since the executive order?

MR. KEMPTON:  I can tell you that.  I have that data here.  Well, I have the data from July 6 essentially through now, and it’s a total of about—we’ve been disposing of—the commitment that was made at the hearing that I referenced was to dispose of 1,140 parcels of property.  About 640 of those in the calendar year of 2007 and another 500 in the calendar year 2008.  And as of March 31, we are at 756 which is about two-thirds of the total.  And if you track that versus time, we’re pretty much on, on schedule to accomplish that disposal.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  I don’t want to move into your testimony.  But of the 760 parcels that have been sold, what was the value of that?

MR. KEMPTON:  About $100 million.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.   And how many total parcels are there to sell?

MR. KEMPTON:  If we sell the 1,140 parcels…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  No.  Beyond the 1,140 parcels.

MR. KEMPTON:  I’m going to get to that, Mr. Chairman.  If we sell the 1,140 parcels, we will be at a point where we have disposed of all of the property for which we do not need for transportation project work.  So we will be…

SENATOR DENHAM:  Is the golf course in Oakland part of that?

MR. KEMPTON:  It is.

SENATOR DENHAM:  Is that part of the 1,140?

MR. KEMPTON:  Yes.

SENATOR DENHAM:  That’s good news.  (Laughter)
MR. KEMPTON:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:   How do we know?  I mean, this is the point, though.  I mean, why did Senator Denham have to ask that question?  Where is that?  Do we have a list of those in your 1,140, or are those proprietary? 

MR. KEMPTON:  No.  You have a complete list.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Can we get that?  Because that would sure save us a lot.

MR. KEMPTON:  Let me just…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  It’s in our packet?

MR. KEMPTON:  Yes.  You have that information.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And is that list sequential in terms of the way you’re doing it or this just…

MR. KEMPTON:  No.  It’s sequential—well, I guess it would be sequential in terms of the way we’re doing it.  It’s sequential by quarter.  It is our planned excess land disposal by quarter.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  By quarter.

MR. KEMPTON:  The number of parcels that we want to do, and I would very much like to explain you how we arrived at that.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Sure.  Go ahead.  I’m sorry.  Go ahead.

MR. KEMPTON:  Following the committee hearing that I referenced in Orange County and the commitment that I made at that time to the members of that committee, we have in fact engaged, as part of our efforts to employ performance-based management across the department, we’ve entered into several contracts with our district directors and with our deputy directors for performance.  That which gets measured gets done.  On the delivery side, we require our district directors to commit over the course of a fiscal year those projects which they’re going to deliver as part of the ongoing program.  So we transfer that same approach to contracts for property disposal.  And so what you have are progress, by parcel, of the effort to dispose of those 1,140 parcels.
Before we could do this, however, Mr. Chairman, we really needed to upgrade our database which was not accurate, as I pointed out at the outset; it had incomplete information; and so we’ve spent a considerable amount of time updating that database, and I think we have a pretty good indication right now of all of our property resources, those which we need for parcels—for projects, rather—those which we have to hold for various reasons—and I’ll cite two examples of that.  The property on Route 238, which comprises about 470 parcels in our system that we are now working with the city of Hayward and under a court order to dispose of that property, we will, as soon as we can work out the details of that, we will be moving rapidly to dispose of those parcels as well since the 238 project, as it was originally intended, is not going to go forward.


The second property, group of properties, that I want to talk about, is the I-710 project in Los Angeles.  That project is still an active project; it’s still contemplated that we will do something in that corridor.  There are a variety of options that are being considered, including the possibility of doing a tunnel, which would obviate the need for the right of way.  But that’s about 450 parcels that we own that are sitting there that we’ve owned for decades.  We are not in the property management business, as I constantly remind our people.  We are not good at it, and we should be moving rapidly to be dispose of properties under our jurisdiction.


SENATOR DENHAM:  If I could interrupt you real quickly.  If you could, just to give the members here a brief description of the project, the 710 project, that you’ve described, as well as any others that may be out there that at one time may have been viable Caltrans projects but, for one reason or another, during one time period or another, during one legislature or another, decisions were made to make them other than transportation projects?


MR. KEMPTON:  I’ll just give you a brief background.  On I-710, we view that as a gap.  It runs up to the south boundaries of the city of Los Angeles, Alhambra, South Pasadena.  There’s a gap up to 210.  We want to close that gap from a transportation system’s perspective.  We have run into opposition from local residents, local communities.  The city of South Pasadena and other jurisdictions have resisted that project, and it’s been an ongoing battle over what’s going to get built there.  And so I am heartened by the discussions that we are now having about the possibility of completing that gap through a tunnel option.  Now that will have to go through the Environmental Reviews and all of those—the Feasibility Study.  We’ve been working with some of the legislators in that area.  We would hope to have a decision on the ability to proceed on a project of that nature within the next year or so.  The environmental process, of course, will take some time.

SENATOR GLORIA NEGRETE McLEOD:  May I interrupt…

MR. KEMPTON:  Sure.


SENATOR NEGRETE McLEOD:  What is it going to cost to do a tunnel versus the on-land or, you know…


MR. KEMPTON:  A tunnel option would be more expensive, considerably more expensive, but there are opportunities potentially of employing a public/private partnership, as an example, to attract private investment, to be able to construct that particular facility.  If it gets us passed the dispute that has been going on and we are able to provide for that transportation connection, I think it’s obviously something we should consider.


SENATOR NEGRETE McLEOD:  How far down do you have to go?


MR. KEMPTON:  That would have to be determined in terms of the actual design, but it would be considerably—it would be scores of feet below the surface.


SENATOR NEGERETE McLEOD:  Okay.  We’re not talking hundreds?  We’re talking…


MR. KEMPTON:  I don’t believe we would be talking hundreds, but we would be talking potentially in the neighborhood of 100 feet below the surface, something like that.


SENATOR NEGRETE McLEOD:  But you did say that Caltrans is not in the property management business.  However, you’ve had that property for a long time which then thereby necessitated you being property managers.  And if you do a tunnel, you will then still be property managers, or then what do you do?


MR. KEMPTON:  No.  If we…


SENATOR NEGRETE McLEOD:  Do you then put those houses for sale?


MR. KEMPTON:  That’s what we would propose to do.  If in fact the tunnel option does prove to be a viable option and we proceed in that direction, we would dispose of the properties on the surface.


SENATOR NEGRETE McLEOD:  And for our Northern California, that’s a political battle down there.


SENATOR DENHAM:  And what are those houses right now in that area?  Is it currently right of way? 


MR. KEMPTON:  No.  It’s residential and some commercial.  It’s primarily residential development.


SENATOR DENHAM:  I think I’m getting this project confused with a different one.  There was another project in Southern California where we purchased the right of way or we owned the homes.  And then legislation, I believe, if I understand correctly, there was legislation that was passed.  We put more money into those homes to refurbish the homes making…


MR. KEMPTON:  That’s the same one.  That’s Interstate 710.  That particular group of homes at the corridor is covered by the Roberti bill—that’s the legislation you’re referring to—which would dictate the disposal of those properties in terms of certain criteria, amount of time a resident has lived in the home, the level of income for the resident, and those would govern the disposal of those properties.


The good news from our perspective, if we’re able to bet rid of those properties, is we get out of the long-term property management business, and there’s some historical homes there.  We’ve had a requirement that we have to upgrade those homes, and we’ve spent a considerable amount of money on upgrading about half of them.  It’s a total of 91 homes that need the upgrade.  We’re working on the remaining half to get those upgraded, and then there are ongoing maintenance issues associated with…

SENATOR DENHAM:  How much money are we putting into those 91 homes to bring them up?


MR. KEMPTON:  It’s going to be about $45 million when all things are said and done.


SENATOR DENHAM:  So we’re putting about, just over a half a million dollars into each home that we own or don’t own?


MR. KEMPTON:  We own them and they are designated as historical homes and we’re doing those upgrades by virtue of a court order in 1999, I believe the date was.


So on the Hayward bypass, just to cover…


SENATOR WYLAND:  Mr. Chairman, since we interjected—if you don’t mind—is by court order, if I understand you right, those homes have to be maintained.


MR. KEMPTON:  Correct.


SENATOR WYLAND:  And we cannot destroy them in order to use them for routes ??, for a tunnel or anything?


MR. KEMPTON:  No, no.  And some of those might not be needed for the actual facility.  But if we had to build a facility, we would in fact remove the homes.  We would raise those homes…


SENATOR WYLAND:  And could not do that because of this court order?

MR. KEMPTON:  No, no.  That would not restrict us if we were to go forward with the project.


SENATOR WYLAND:  Okay.


MR. KEMPTON:  It’s getting the project approvals.  It’s getting an improved environmental document to proceed with a surface transportation facility.


SENATOR WYLAND:  When you do that, other than CEQA, what do you have to do through?


MR. KEMPTON:  It’s also because of, the fact that its an interstate route and there will be federal dollars involved, we also have to go through the NEPA process at the federal level.  But that’s not unusual, Senator Wyland, for most of our project work.  I-5 down in your district is both a CEQA and NEPA document for clearance.


SENATOR WYLAND:  Can we as a state condemn property?

MR. KEMPTON:  Yes.


SENATOR WYLAND:  I think, from my own perspective, since virtually every highway in my area is so impacted with traffic, I wish that some of the resources that you have could be used to condemn property and expand lanes whenever possible.  I just make this an aside because this property ought to be used for that and not make them HOV lanes.  And I’ll just interject here that the very first use of bond money in Solana Beach in my district, ____ the governor—it covers about two miles and it’s all HOV lanes.  An unfortunate fact is, all those people who voted for those bonds—and I did—are going to drive on the 5 and see those HOV lanes not utilized and they’re going to be so unhappy.  That’s not—I don’t know whose decision that was.  I know that was part of the deal with the Coastal Commission, unfortunately, so I just hope you are as aggressive as possible. And any funds that we get from the sale of this property are used specifically to build lanes on roads.


MR. KEMPTON:  Senator, I’d be happy to have a separate discussion with you on that issue and hope we can talk about that later.  I wanted to get back to the Alameda 238 project, if I could, that’s in Alameda.


SENATOR DENHAM:  If we could just follow real quickly on the 710 issue, $45 million we’re spending on 91 homes.  The $45 million, where is that money coming from?


MR. KEMPTON:  That comes out of the state highway account.


SENATOR DENHAM:  And we will have to tear all those homes down to put the tunnel in?  Do I understand that correctly?


MR. KEMPTON:  No, no.  If the tunnel were to go, that would be the point.  We would preserve the housing stock.  We would be able to dispose of that property and that we would still have the transportation connection.

SENATOR DENHAM:  And the expense of the tunnel?


MR. KEMPTON:  We don’t have an accurate figure yet, but it will be a very expensive project.


SENATOR DENHAM:  Projected date?  Do we have an estimate?


MR. KEMPTON:  We’re thinking that the environmental process is probably going to take a good two years or longer, and so we’re a ways away from making a final decision on that.  We’re in the middle of some feasibility studies and providing information relative to that project right now, working with the Metropolitan Transportation Authority in Los Angeles.


SENATOR DENHAM:  So at this point on that specific project, basically two choices, is, either tear down the homes that we’re putting $45 million into and building a freeway over the top of that, or, building a tunnel which will be very expensive, obviously, to leave those houses there.


MR. KEMPTON:  And there is, of course, a third option, and that would be to abandon the project altogether.


SENATOR DENHAM:  Okay.  Are there other—Senator Wyland, after this question—are there other projects in the state that are similar to this that are being impeded or projects where we’ve got competing interests; we’re spending money to actually fix up an area but yet are trying to at the same time sell it off so we can build a road?


MR. KEMPTON:  Well, you wouldn’t sell it if you were going to build a road.  You would be razing the property and hopefully doing that within a short order, short period of time.


We have a responsibility when we buy property for a transportation facility to maintain it until it is needed, and we have to engage in that on an ongoing basis.  But I-710 and the properties along there are unique, and they’re covered by the Roberti bill.  It is a very unique situation that is not matched anywhere else in the state.

SENATOR DENHAM:  Thank you.

Senator Wyland.


SENATOR WYLAND:  To go back to that very issue—and you mentioned the Robert bill—could you again briefly explain why that would prevent you from just building on top of those homes, razing them, forget the $45 million we’re spending, and just build right through there?


MR. KEMPTON:  The Robert bill wouldn’t in and of itself prevent that.  It would still allow for a project to proceed.  It just governs or guides how we would dispose of those properties.  If we don’t build a facility there, if that’s the choice, then we would dispose of those properties under specific criteria included in the Roberti bill.


SENATOR WYLAND:  Well, whose decision is it that we don’t build, extend the 710, and do it the cheaper way?


MR. KEMPTON:  In the business of determining which transportation projects go forward, you obviously have a significant amount of community input.  And with the environmental process, processes that we operate under, you need that concurrence.  We do not yet have an improved environmental document for a surface transportation facility, and that’s primarily the result of the fact that there has been a significant amount of community opposition.  There’s a substantial amount of support too.  I don’t mean to say that the entire community is against this project.  That is not accurate.  But the fact of the matter is, that the city of South Pasadena, and I believe the city of La Canada, Flintridge, and other community groups have been in opposition to that facility and have over the years have been successful in blocking out ability to move forward.


SENATOR WYLAND:  Well, I think that is another discussion.  And I think we need to figure out a way to build a road, raze the houses.  There’s lots and lots and lots for anyone who knows that area, historical houses around Pasadena.  There’s plenty of them.  Anyone who wants to visit them, tour them, can find them.  And so I’ll leave it at that, and that ought to be a subsequent discussion, and it deals with this whole CEQA issue which prevents us from doing things that California needs.


MR. KEMPTON:  So if I could go back to the 238—and I’ll just be brief on that point—again, that was scheduled to be a gap closure in State Route 238 in Southern Alameda County in the city of Hayward.  Again, community opposition lawsuits that resulted ultimately in a decision to proceed with a different project.  So the project will not be a freeway, as was originally proposed.  It will be more of a surface arterial that will be built on a different alignment.  As a result of that, there is no longer a need for us to retain those properties.  But you don’t just go out and dump 470 properties, or whatever the number is, on a local community or on the market.  So we’re working with the city of Hayward to devise a plan for how we would dispose of those properties, and Senator Corbett from your house has been engaged in those discussions, as well as Assemblymember Hayashi, so we’re working with the community on that.

SENATOR DENHAM:  Are these the various businesses that are located along that corridor that we lease office space to?

MR. KEMPTON:  Yes, some of them.


SENATOR DENHAM:  The massage parlor that we talked about?


MR. KEMPTON:  No, no, no.  That’s—the massage therapy facility is, I believe, in Marin County, and I’m happy to cover that in more detail.


SENATOR DENHAM:  That will be—I certainly have some questions on our leasing procedures and how we determine what a good lease is and a good tenant as well as the proper values for leases, but if you’ll continue, please.


MR. KEMPTON:  Well, recognizing your time constraints, let me just briefly run through some questions that your staff had indicated were important to you.  We do acquire and dispose of property a bit differently than DGS.  We do buy property that’s needed for state transportation facilities for our operational needs.  And we can, going to the State Transportation Commission, we can go ahead and proceed with the disposal of those properties, and DGS has to operate under a different process, which I’m sure they’ll explain.  We can sell properties offering them to local government agencies, other governmental agencies.  In accordance with those provisions of the Government Code, the sales have to be for the following uses:  for the purpose of providing low- and moderate-income housing, for Parks and Rec purposes, or open-space purposes, for school facility construction, or used by a school district for open space, for an enterprise zone purpose in an area designated as an enterprise zone, and for a transit (!) village development pursuant to legislation passed in 1994.

The sale from the proceeds, or the proceeds from the sale of our properties, go into the state highway account but then are transferred to the public transportation account.  This was an action that was taken by the legislature in the late 1990s when that account, the public transportation account, was in significant need for revenues with a lot of demands facing it, and so that’s the current way that that happens.


I wanted to make sure that you were aware of my commitment on the disposal and the progress that we’re making, and you have that information as I’ve provided to you.  And again, it’s about $100.8 million that we’ve earned to date by virtue of that sale.  Obviously, we’re conducting this disposal activity in a weak real estate market.  But, still, our ability to get rid of that property and put it back on the tax rolls, return it to productive use, is, I think, is very positive so you have my…


SENATOR DENHAM:  Just to clarify, so once it’s been determined that it is up for sale, it goes to local government first to determine if there’s a public need and then it goes to the open-bid process for private…


MR. KEMPTON:  Exactly.  We make an offer to public agencies and allow a certain amount of time for them to respond and then we’ll proceed to public sale. 

SENATOR DENHAM:  Okay.  And what if you have two competing agencies that both would enjoy that property?


MR. KEMPTON:  Well, we still—it’s not a matter of transferring it them for free.  It’s still a fair market value issue.  So at that point, I suspect we would get into negotiations with the folks on the value of the property.


Okay.  And again, we’ve provided information for you.  And as the committee asked, we will get you a written copy of the comments that I’m making, and you can see the increase in the department’s excess land sales effective from the July 2006 date that’s on that contract through the present time.  We do hold more than 1,700 parcels that are required for about a dozen projects that have been in our inventory for a long period of time.  And the projects that I referenced have in fact been delayed for decades.  So it’s a complicated, sensitive local issue for most of these projects.  In many instances, the courts are involved, and we have to deal with all of those issues and I cited the two project areas that are most significant in that regard.


Since 2003, and I believe, Mr. Chairman, you asked this question.  But since 2003, we have disposed of nearly 1,900 parcels at Caltrans totaling more than $209 million, and we have that information by year.


You wanted to talk about the high-profile properties.  Let me briefly run through those.  The golf course property is a small, irregularly shaped parcel of nominal value.  It was acquired in 1955 for the anticipated widening of Route 13.  That’s in the Berkeley/Oakland area.  The project didn’t occur.  The issue is that the project or the property is encumbered by slope easements and significant draining facilities.  It’s sloped on two sides.  We’re currently leasing it to the city of Oakland as part of a small recreational golf course that we’re getting $660 per month.  We have literally offered this property for disposal to the city.  The city has not expressed an interest in taking it.  It is not something that will be easily disposed of, and yet it is obviously on the market.


The “massage parlor” property, we don’t own the massage parlor.  We own a commercial building that was purchased for a transportation project in San Rafael.  There is a licensed massage therapy practice occurring in that building and the tenant pays about $2,000 a month in market rent.  They are one occupant of this mixed-use building in the city of San Rafael.  And the parcel, it will be in excess when we finish the project that’s currently underway, a construction project on the Portsuella ?? Hill section of the Route 101 widening is completed.  Once that’s completed, we will take the remaining parcel and we will dispose of that property, and the structure or the commercial building in which this business that we’ve talked about is located, will be part of that sale.


You asked about a Eureka property, and the only one we could think of that was somewhat controversial was a direct sale to a commercial tenant in 2005.  That was the Redwood Community Action Agency.  Such sales are consistent with the Streets and Highways Code that grant qualifying commercial tenants with the Right of First Refusal.  It was approved by the Transportation Commission in 2005, and we recorded the sale in January 2006.  The sale resulted in a fair market return of about $440,000, and the reason that it was controversial is, there was a private developer that was interested in the property and was attempting to get involved in that process.


Senator Harman is well familiar with the Laguna Beach property.  This is a property located in the city of Laguna Beach on which is located a day labor site that is run by a nonprofit organization in cooperation with the city.  We have a lease with the city for that.  It is surplus for our needs.  We are proceeding to sell.  Senator Harman and others have expressed concerns about that.  We are currently going through a process of determining any safety issues or whatever, but we do want to proceed with the sale of that property as quickly as we can.


Let’s see if there’s anything else that I—we talked about the 710 freeway properties, and we talked about the 237 properties.  And so in conclusion, I just wanted to say, we are committed to disposing of the properties needed, deemed surplus, to the transportation needs of the state.  And I’m also going to commit to your committee, Mr. Chairman, that we will voluntarily provide an update response to the state auditor relative to the issues that were raised in the 2001 audit.  I think we made significant progress.  I won’t stipulate to you that we are perfect in our operations, but we made very, very significant progress in moving forward on the sale on our excess lands.  And so we will give Ms. Howle an update on that within a matter of weeks and copy the committee on that.


Yes?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  …to submit that prior to a matter of weeks, given our budget is, or May Revise is out.


MR. KEMPTON:  I will do the best I can.  I will try to get it as soon as possible.  I tend to be a little aggressive on my commitments, and the staff sometimes gets upset with me, but we will look to provide that to you as soon as we can, Mr. Chair.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  No.  That’s wonderful.  And could I also ask that you follow the format of the audit itself?


MR. KEMPTON:  Exactly.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  In other words, the information is an absolute update of current…


MR. KEMPTON:  We will treat it just like it would be in a response to the auditor originally.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Awesome, great.


MR. KEMPTON:  That’s what we’ll provide.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you need legislative approval to sell your land?


MR. KEMPTON:  No.

SENATOR DENHAM:  But some of the properties you discussed, 710, that property, there are certain areas that have been encumbered by prior legislation.


MR. KEMPTON:  There are some legislative requirements associated with the disposal of some of our properties, but we need the approval of the State Transportation Commission.

SENATOR DENHAM:  Sorry.  I didn’t meant to interrupt.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  No, no problem.  So in other words, you don’t have to go through the process of coming to the legislature…


MR. KEMPTON:  No.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  …for approval?  So would you say that has something to do with your ability to move some of this property quicker?


MR. KEMPTON:  I would agree that that certainly makes it more, gives us a more flexible opportunity to do that.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Members, any questions, any other questions?


Thanks, Mr. Kempton.

SENATOR DENHAM:  Are there any of the properties under Caltrans that, if they were sold, would impact the General Fund rather than just transportation projects?  Have there been some projects the General Fund dollars have been utilized for rather than completely transportation dollars?


MR. KEMPTON:  Not that I’m aware of, Senator Denham.  All of our properties would go first to the state highway account, then be transferred to the public transportation account, the proceeds of these.

SENATOR DENHAM:  And I’m assuming that, because Caltrans operates somewhat differently than other departments throughout the state, that there is a justification process on which properties you hold as opposed to which properties you sell?
MR. KEMPTON:  Yes, there is, and in short order, it’s the need for the property for a transportation facility and that we have a requirement once we’ve completed that facility or determine that we no longer need a piece of property, that we should be disposing of that property within a year, and our past practice has not followed that direction.  And so, again, given the effort that we have underway now, my goal is by the end of this calendar year to bring this current with the property relative to our needs and to employ that process as we go forward for the disposal of any unneeded property within a year’s timeframe.

SENATOR DENHAM:  So there is a complete justification process.  But at certain times in past decades, there have been exemptions to that process.  If you could provide us either a list of those exemptions or the criteria behind having exemption, that would be helpful to us as well.  As well, in that process, I’d like to also understand better when the determination is made on whether you lease a property or sell a property and if there are exemptions to that as well.


And then lastly, there is obviously federal dollars that go into these transportation projects as well.  What happens to those federal dollars as they’re…


MR. KEMPTON:  We used to have to return those dollars to the federal government or the Federal Highway Administration.  But since we pump all of our dollars back into transportation, the transportation program and transportation facilities, we’ve been relieved of that requirement.


SENATOR DENHAM:  So when you sell a project off, both the state and federal dollars will go back into whatever the next project is on the drawing board?


MR. KEMPTON:  Either that, or it would go through the state, again, through the state highway account, to the public transportation account.  It will be available out of the public transportation account for expenditure on transportation facilities.


SENATOR DENHAM:  Only public transportation?


MR. KEMPTON:  Correct.


SENATOR DENHAM:  Okay.  And lastly, on this list here, if you could also get us information on—I’m assuming that the $1,140—this the $1,140 project?


MR. KEMPTON:  Yes.


SENATOR DENHAM:  So 756 of these have been sold off.  Can you also get us the information on which properties of these have been sold?


MR. KEMPTON:  The ones that have, for example, that page that you have there, completely sold, you can see the headings across the little boxes that have orange in there, it will say CTC approval and deed recorded, the deed recorded box.  If it’s filled in with orange, that property has been sold.


SENATOR DENHAM:  And the stars, completed ahead of schedule?


MR. KEMPTON:  Right.


SENATOR DENHAM:   So just the white spaces are properties…


MR. KEMPTON:  The white, and then there’s a salmon color we’re having—for example, on the Prunedale bypass, on State Route 101…


SENATOR DENHAM:  I’m very familiar with that project.


MR. KEMPTON:  Yes, as you well know.  We’ve got some title issues associated with some of the property that we’re attempting to dispose of there.  They’re footnoted in that report, what the issues are.  Any ones that show the salmon color are behind schedule, and there’s a footnote that indicates the reason that they are in fact not meeting the schedule requirements.


SENATOR DENHAM:  And this is a list from the 2004 executive order?


MR. KEMPTON:  No.  This is a list that we put together following the hearing that was held in Orange County in November of 2006.  As I say, we got the message in no uncertain terms about the concerns.  We were, of course, making efforts to follow the governor’s executive order, but this list and this contract actually came out of the 2006 hearing.


SENATOR DENHAM:  And is there a new list in the last two years?

MR. KEMPTON:  That is as of March 31 of 2008.  There will be an updated list provided as of June 30 of this year.  We report by quarter.


SENATOR DENHAM:  Okay.  And do you also have the information behind all of these projects on what the either value or the sale amount is and the acreage associated with each of these?

MR. KEMPTON:  We do.  I can say now, with a high degree of confidence that we do, and that was one of the problems, that when we had the committee hearing, we could not say, for every parcel that we own, I think we had an understanding of the inventory but we couldn’t say when it was purchased, what it was valued at.  Even the size of the parcel was, in many instances in or database, at issue.  So those problems have been corrected.  I feel pretty confident that we have a good database at this point.


Even though I want to point out that it is not automated—there’s a lot of hand pushing that goes into this, but we’re taking the time to do that.  Any time you want to upgrade a system to track your expenses or whatever, it’s a lengthy process in state government that involves feasibility study report and a whole bunch of other activities.  So that’s problematic when you’re trying to upgrade a very large database of this nature.


SENATOR DENHAM:  And just one final question.  Does Caltrans own any properties outside of the state?



MR. KEMPTON:  No.


SENATOR DENHAM:  Okay.  Thank you.


MR. KEMPTON:  Thank you.  And Mr. Chairman, I’d like to stay for the rest of the hearing but I do need to get back, and I hope you’ll understand that we will follow through on our commitments today and provide you with the information, and we’ll look to see the conclusions of this hearing; and whatever requirements you have of us, we will attempt to meet.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Great.  Thank you very much.


SENATOR WYLAND:  Just one very quick question.  When you do dispose of property, do you do it; does DGS do it; who does that?  And can you briefly describe the procedure, just briefly?


MR. KEMPTON:  Sure.  We typically do it.  I think there’s probably some examples where we’ve worked with DGS on certain properties, but we do the appraisal because we have the resources in house.  We will actually handle the sale of the properties, and we will go through the recording, first of all, obtaining the rule of the CTC, and then the recording.  So it’s done in house.


SENATOR WYLAND:  And do you actually list it—in other words, do the sale—or do you have a realty company do that?


MR. KEMPTON:  No.  We’ll typically do the sale.  And again, I say typically because I’m sure I can identify some examples of where we’ve actually done otherwise.  But for the most part, we list the property; we handle the sale; and _____.


SENATOR WYLAND:  My only comment here—and this may not be applicable to Caltrans—is that in the past when the government has liquidated property, in my experience—and I’ve seen this multiple times—they sell it for far less than actual market value when they do it.  Now this may not apply, but I’ve seen it over and over and over again.  When the RTC did that in the savings and loan crisis, they made many, many, many multiple millionaires by simply unloading the property themselves at way below market.  So my suggestion would be that you do that through realtors who actually, I think, really know values and maximize your dollars, and that’s just the only comment I have.


SENATOR DENHAM:  One last question, all of the properties that you have in your inventory, have you purchased all of those right of ways, or are any of the properties either given to the state as a gift or traded for tax issues?


MR. KEMPTON:  There are probably some examples of properties that have been donated.  It’s not usual.  Again, and then there are—I can’t remember any specific examples, but we will sometimes trade a parcel of equal value, for example, a mitigation site, something along those lines, we might engage in a trade.


SENATOR DENHAM:  But no issues with development or sale like we may have with Parks and Rec, we may have with the UC system.  All of your properties, you’re able to sell—you can’t think of any properties that you are unable to sell if that becomes your determination to sell? 


MR. KEMPTON:  Well, other than the market conditions because of—I’ll cite the Montclair Golf Course as an example.  We’d like to dispose of that property.  It’s a one-and-a-half piece of property in a very nice area of the Oakland/Berkeley community.  We can’t sell it.  So it’s not—in this market, as an example, it’s not uncommon that we will put a property out for bid, a sliver.  Maybe it’s not, lends itself to commercial or residential development and we’ll get no takers.  So then we might contact the adjacent property owner and work out an arrangement with them but that happens.

SENATOR DENHAM:  Okay.  Thank you.

MR. KEMPTON:  Okay.  Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman and Members.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let’s go to DGS.  Mr. Webb.


MR. MIKE WEBB:  Good afternoon. Committee.  Mike Webb with the Department of General Service(s).

Firstly, briefly, I just want to go over a brief overview of the sales process on the surplus property.  And the first point that I want to make is that DGS controls very little of the state’s real estate, and I know that there’s a misconception out there that we control it all when in fact that isn’t true.  However, we do sell a lot of the property for most agencies and departments.


Typically our process is that annually in the summer we will send out a notice to all agencies and departments asking them to identify what their surplus properties are and report those surplus properties back to us.  Once those properties are identified, we will place those in our annual surplus property bill.


I want to be very clear.  DGS does not have the ability to go out and determine what properties are surplused.  Other agencies and departments make their own determinations internally and what properties they have that are excess in surplus and they indicate that to us.  And so once that process is done, we will run our annual omnibus surplus property bill.  And once that is signed into law, if it is signed into law, then DGS will work to actively sell those surplus properties.


To fast forward, after the governor released the executive order, S-10-04, DGS placed an extra emphasis on selling surplus properties.  Some of the activities that we included with this was enhancing the statewide property index to ID these state properties.  We also in 2004 and 2005 put together a strike team to go out and identify more surplus properties and we worked very closely with agencies and departments to identify more surplus properties, and this all culminated in the 2005 annual surplus property bill in which we identified a number of surplus properties valued at approximately $137 million.  Unfortunately, that was also the time when our CEQA conflict arose and that bill was not signed into law.


Traditionally, the state has had a CEQA exemption in its surplus property bills.  The issue here really, from our perspective, isn’t whether the whole process is going to be exempt from CEQA or not.  CEQA is going to be done on these properties.  The issue here is, who is going to do the CEQA review.  Is it going to be the state or is it going to be the purchaser of the property, and the state has always held that we believe that the purchaser, the developer, is always the appropriate party to do the CEQA review.


But as a result, since that time, we’ve not been able to move a surplus property bill through the legislature.  However, we have had a number of surplus property bills that were declared surplus prior to that.  In the past six years, we’ve been actively selling these properties.  We have sold 53 properties, totaling over $250 million in gross sales.  And even with the problems that we’ve had, we are still working on identifying additional properties.  And recently, the director of DGS sent out an additional notice to the departments and agencies asking them to again review their properties and identify any properties that they believe may be surplused to their needs.

Those are my opening comments.  With me today are some of our DGS folks who work on our surplus property sales—Bob McKinnon, Jill Mergatagay ??, and Ron Small.  And with that, we’re open for any questions.


SENATOR DENHAM:  I just want to clarify.  You said since 2003, 53 properties at $250 million?


MR. WEBB:  Since—I believe it’s the 2002-2003 fiscal year.


SENATOR DENHAM:  And the biggest impediment to the sale of more properties than that was the CEQA exemption with the…

MR. WEBB:  Yes, it’s the identification.  It’s actually having properties that have gone through the legislative process and signed into law and declared surplus for us to be able to sell them.


SENATOR DENHAM:  What properties can DGS sell without the approval of the legislature?


MR. WEBB:  I’m not aware of any properties that we can sell without the approval of the legislature.


SENATOR DENHAM:  And what other criteria would you have for not selling of property, other than CEQA exemption?  Is there anything else if the legislature deems it a property that should be sold other than CEQA?


MR. WEBB:  Are you saying that there’s a bill that’s been passed by the legislature and signed by the governor declaring property surplus and then what do we do with it at that point?


SENATOR DENHAM:  Yes.


MR. WEBB:  At that point, we have the property available that’s a surplus designation.  We can go out and actively look to market that property.  It varies on a case-by-case basis.  We’ll certainly do an asset enhancement study on the property.  We want to ensure that the state gets the maximum value for the piece of property.  There’s several things that we do.  But once it has been declared surplused, then, you know, the roads open for us to go out and sell that.


SENATOR DENHAM:  Is there a reason—it was brought to my attention earlier that the property in Senator Wiggins’ district was leased instead of sold?  Is there a reason that we would ever want to lease a property rather than selling it?


MR. WEBB:  I believe the property in Senator Wiggins’ district was the, fell into the CEQA…

SENATOR DENHAM:  It was an armory…


MR. WEBB:  I think it fell into the CEQA issue.  I believe that was a bill that was vetoed.


SENATOR DENHAM:  It wasn’t vetoed, was it?  Wasn’t that in the discussion we just had?


MR. BOB McKINNON:  Bob McKinnon, and I’m in the Asset Enhancement Unit of the real estate division.


Senator, I believe you’re referring to the 850 acres that the county in Napa has under lease.  That lease runs—I believe the term runs till 2030, and I can’t remember when that lease was first signed.  I believe it was signed in approximately 20 years ago or so, and I believe Senator Chesbro had introduced a bill initially and then Senator Wiggins followed up on that bill to…

SENATOR DENHAM:  Actually, the one we’re referring to was an Assemblymember Berg bill, and it dealt with the armory in Healdsburg.


MR. McKINNON:  Oh, I’m sorry.  Oh, the Healdsburg Armory?


SENATOR DENHAM:  It was initially a property for sale, and it was my understanding that that changed to a lease at the administration’s request, and we had a hard time understanding why that would change.


MR. McKINNON:  I apologize.  I thought you were referring to the Napa State Hospital property.


UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  _________.


MR. WEBB:  I believe that was a bill that was vetoed by the governor last year, if I’m not mistaken.  That’s what I thought the bill, what we’re talking about.  Okay.  And then there was a lease.  I think there’s a difference here, Senator, between the sales of surplus property and the leasing of property.  And when you enter into the area of the sale of surplus property, that’s when the CEQA issue has arose, and that seems to be where the disagreement is on whether a CEQA exemption is appropriate in these cases.


SENATOR DENHAM:  I understand, and I guess what I’m trying to get at is the administration’s philosophy on when we lease versus when we sell.  This was one property that it is my understanding was passed by the legislature to sell at fair market value, was vetoed by the governor—and you can correct me if I’m wrong.  But then, after it was vetoed, Assemblymember Berg came up with a new bill to lease the property that was then signed into law.  So I’m trying to understand why we would not sell that property if we had the opportunity to.

MR. WEBB:  I believe the governor has been clear in his veto messages on this topic that he believes that a CEQA exemption is appropriate on the sales of these properties.


SENATOR DENHAM:  I think there’s a number of these examples.  We’re going to hear from the city of Soledad here shortly.  But three different pieces of legislation, you know, where we have an agreement at fair market value from the local community that wants to purchase the property; we have an administration that wants to sell the property; and a legislature that is running a huge deficit that wants to clear up that deficit.  And in this situation with Soledad, we had an exemption; we did it without an exemption.  I mean, we’ve sent the bill three different ways at three different years.  All three times, it was vetoed, and now we’re signing a bill that leases the property to Soledad when they clearly want to purchase it.

MR. WEBB:  I’m sorry.  I don’t understand the question.


SENATOR DENHAM:  The question is, why that bill would be vetoed when it had the exemption in it and you had a buyer that wanted to purchase it at a fair market value.  I mean, it flies right in the face of what your previous testimony was.


MR. WEBB:  I understand.  Other than the governor’s veto message, I couldn’t speak to that.  I just represent the Department of General Services on this issue.


SENATOR DENHAM:  Okay.  I think what we’re trying to get at here is the committee is trying to understand the philosophy of the administration on each of these bills.  And in this bill in particular, the veto message conflicted itself between the two years—one, having the CEQA exemption, like the administration wanted; the next one, not having the CEQA exemption; and then even amending the third bill the previous bill that was again vetoed; and then having a separate bill that had a lease in it.  I mean, we just want to understand the philosophy on when we would lease properties versus when we would sell properties, and the point of this hearing today is to determine at what point we can not only determine what properties can be sold this year but what impact they will have to the budget, and then also what the priority is of the administration on whether we sell a property or lease a property, and should we indeed consider any of these properties in or budget discussions.


MR. WEBB:  Senator, I can only speak from the Department of General Services’ perspective, and the perspective is this:  We’re given a list of surplus properties that we put in our annual surplus property bill.  We actively move that through the legislative process trying to get that signed into law.  If we do get that signed into law, then we actively go out and try to sell those properties.  That’s what the Department of General Services does.  Some of your questions may be more appropriately placed to the Governor’s Office and not to the Department of General Services.


SENATOR DENHAM:  Okay.  But you work for the administration and you provide recommendations on whether bills get signed or vetoed and whether or not we sell or keep properties in our portfolios.  Isn’t that not what DGS does?


MR. WEBB:  Yes.  I was hired by the administration to represent the Department of General Services and that is what I do.


SENATOR DENHAM:  Okay.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.  Senator Wyland.


SENATOR WYLAND:  One brief question.  As you dispose of properties for various agencies, have you ever disposed of property from the State Parks, ever disposed of property, for example, that a community—city or county—wanted to acquire that would remain a park but they wished to acquire it?  Has that ever happened in you memory?

MR. McKINNON:  Senator, in this case, it wasn’t a Parks property.  It was a Department of Corrections property down in Chino, the California Institution for Men, where the city of Chino had the Ruben Ayala Regional Park under long-term lease, and they acquired that as part of the disposition of some larger surplus acreage, and that property was transferred to the city in perpetuity to be used as a regional park.


SENATOR WYLAND:  Surplus property surrounding the Chino…


MR. McKINNON:  Yes, sir.


SENATOR WYLAND:  …institution.

MR. McKINNON:  Correct.


SENATOR WYLAND:  Again, one brief comment, because this affects multiple agencies.  There are two state beaches in one of my communities; there are others.  One of them, the parks was approached by the city of Encinitas multiple times to acquire the property.  This is not DGS’s problem.  They refused.  It clearly would have been better managed by the community of Encinitas.  It was horribly managed.  They attempted to improve it, spent many millions which was absolutely wasted by one attempt that the ocean—I mean it just is a long story, but I think it exemplifies the inability of so many of these agencies to give up anything.  And I think that’s why the auditor talked about incentives.  That’s not your issue, but it’s an example of something that ought to be done but isn’t done, and I think across government, it’s replete with that.  We can’t get that in time for this year’s budget, but it is a major problem for this state and for generating income that ought to be there.  And I would bet you that there are many, many, many state park areas that counties and cities would much rather acquire, especially those that are adjacent because, frankly, they can better manage them.  So I just throw that in as a comment.  And the other part of that is, Do you rely on those agencies to bring it forward, or do you ever—I assume you rely on it that way as opposed to asking, you know, being more aggressive and saying, let’s go over your list.  Do you ever do that?


MR. WEBB:  Yes, we do.  And as I mentioned, we annually go out to the agencies and departments asking them to identify surplus properties.  And at times, certainly after the governor’s Executive Order in 2004, we actively went out and worked with the departments and the agencies to try to get them to identify more surplus properties.  And recently, the director of DGS just sent out a letter to all the agencies and departments asking them to help us to identify additional surplus properties that we can hopefully try and get moving and sell at this time.

SENATOR DENHAM:  Did each of you have a testimony or…


MR. WEBB:  No.  I’m just here to answer questions.


SENATOR DENHAM:  I certainly have a number of questions because my question still isn’t answered yet, but I think it’s something that you and I can discuss separately, Mr. Webb.  I obviously have a great deal of concerns.  The city of Soledad is here today and we’re going to be discussing that property in particular, but there is a contradiction there in that that property was passed in a piece of legislation that was CEQA exemption.  So if there is some other criteria on why you would not sign a bill or why the governor would not sign a bill that is deemed surplus, that is deemed for sale and has the CEQA exemption, I would like to see that in writing.


Secondly, we do have the Executive Order list dealing with the California performance review and the high value of urban properties.  As we asked the auditor and Caltrans, we would also ask the Department of General Services to give us a list of properties that the governor would support the sale of and the criteria needed for that.  If that’s a CEQA exemption, that’s certainly a battle that I would love to fight here dealing with this year’s budget, but I would like to know that criteria ahead of time because, if we’re able to fill this budget gap with the sale of some properties, I would certainly hate to roll over a deficit when those bills get vetoed after I fight for CEQA exemption, as I have in the past.  Secondly, if there are properties that you deem should be leased rather than sold, I would like to see a list of those as well.


MR. WEBB:  Okay.

SENATOR DENHAM:  Thank you for your testimony today.


And next we would call forward is Happy Chastain and Allen Meacham from the University of California.  Thank you for joining us here this morning—still morning—this afternoon.


MR. ALLEN MEACHAM:  Thank you.  Committee Members, I’m Allen Meacham.  I’m the assistant director of the Real Estate Services Group with the Office of the President, and I’d like to give you a brief overview of the university’s real estate…

SENATOR DENHAM:  If you could turn your microphone on, please.  There you go.  Thank you.


MR. MEACHAM:  Thank you.  I’d like to give you brief overview of the university’s real estate, and in particular, its process for identifying and selling surplus property.

As of June 30, 2007, UC-owned, program-related real estate totaling approximately 112 million gross square feet of buildings and approximately 35,000 acres of land, almost all of these buildings and most of this land are located on the university’s ten campuses.  The balance of the university’s land area consists largely of the various natural reserves and agricultural experiment stations that the university operates for research.

The university acquires its real estate really in two basic fashions similar to the state agencies you’ve heard from.  We often pay market value for it.  At times, perhaps somewhat unlike the state agencies you’ve heard from, we’ve received real estate by donation from donors.  At times, particularly in the case of donations, the property that the university receives is subject to deed restrictions, and these deed restrictions typically limit the use of the property to use by the university and sometimes very specific uses by specific programs, specific departments, and they typically provide in some manner or another that if the university ceases using it for that purpose, that the title reverts to the donor.


I can give you a couple of examples of this mix of paying cash for property and donations going back to the formation of the Berkeley campus starting in 1868.  It was very much a combination of paying for some land and receiving donations of others, other land.  In the early ‘60s, a big growth period for the university, the Irvine campus was—the bulk of the Irvine campus was acquired from the Irvine Company, land company, and a large portion of it being donated by them and a good portion of it, us paying market value for it.


To put the question of surplus property in context, the university has a very long time horizon.  History shows, not just with our institution but with universities in general in America, the campuses start small and inevitably they grow out to their edges and run up against their neighbors.  And at that point, they start growing taller rather than growing outward.  The university therefore does not consider vacant lands on its campuses as surplus.  It considers them assets to be husbanded for future generations of students.


The basic university device for managing its physical resources are the long-range development plans that each campus prepares every eight to ten years.  Similar plans are prepared for the natural reserve system and for the agriculture research stations. 

Out of this planning process, two things happen—existing buildings are evaluated to determine whether the programs, departments, activities that are in them are still suited there; and if not, whether, what use to make of them by another department or activity; in some cases, even demolishing the building in favor of building a new one.  And whatever vacant land is then remaining on the campus is prioritized for future development as funds become available for construction of buildings.


The chancellors of the campuses are the lead people responsible for managing the campus’s physical resources.  Out of the LRDP planning process, they make from time to time initial determinations that a particular property of surplus to a campus’s needs and propose to the Office of the President that the property be sold and propose what the use of the proceeds from the sale should be.  The Office of the President reviews and approves the chancellor proposal and is responsible then for marketing the property in closing the transaction.  Of course, the Board of Regents has the ultimate approval authority over both the determination that the property is surplus and then the terms of the sale transaction itself.


Over the last three fiscal years, the university has sold a total of 11 surplus properties at an aggregate price of approximately $74 million.  Currently, the university has four properties that have been declared surplus and are in varying stages of preparation prior to sale.


In all but one of these 15 cases, the properties were located some distance from the campus.  And because they were distant from the campus, no other campus unit was found to make use of the property and therefore was concluded to be surplus.  And I think that’s, again, in the context of the university, as a campus-based organization, I think that’s probably kind of important to focus on, that properties that the university concludes to be surplus are typically not on the campus, on the edge of campus.  They’re typically a few blocks to a few miles to quite a distance from the campus.


SENATOR DENHAM:  Would an example of that be the property that was in San Jose?


MR. MEACHAM:  Yes.  Yes, although, the property in San Jose was an agriculture extension station, and that was a situation where essentially Silicon Valley grew up around the station and it didn’t become practical to continue agriculture research there, but to move it elsewhere.


SENATOR DENHAM:  That was sold off as surplus property that’s in that 15…


MR. MEACHAM:  No, because that was prior—the 11 were over the last three fiscal years.  That predated that period of time.


Proceeds from the sale of a surplus property are first applied to pay off any debt that might have been incurred in its purchase and that remains outstanding at the time that the property is sold.  Otherwise, the proceeds from the sale typically remain with the campus and are often applied to purchase or construct a replacement facility or to endow the program that occupied the surplus property prior to sale.


SENATOR DENHAM:  Just for example, say, the property in San Jose, can you tell us where that money went to?  Did it go to a specific campus, or did it go to a specific program?


MR. MEACHAM:  It went, from my memory—and I would have to send you the exact details—but my memory is that the Division of Agriculture and Natural Resources purchased a replacement facility.  Further south, I want to say maybe in San Benito County and moved the research activity that was there down to the new facility.


SENATOR DENHAM:  And who purchased the property?


MR. MEACHAM:  The university; we did.


SENATOR DENHAM:  No, no.  Who purchased the property in San Jose?


MR. MEACHAM:  Oh, the San Jose property.  I don’t recall off the top of my head.


SENATOR DENHAM:  But it was sold to a private firm?


MR. MEACHAM:  Yes.  I want to say it was like a homebuilder or something, you know.

MS. HAPPY CHASTAIN:  Senator, Happy Chastain with University of California.  If you’d like us to get the approximate sale price of the property, we’ll be glad to do that.

SENATOR DENHAM:  Thank you.  I think I’m more concerned about the recent years and certainly the last three years, the 11, that were sold before the surplus and the $74 million that we received.  If you could give us a list, as we’ve asked Caltrans.

MR. MEACHAM:  Certainly.


SENATOR DENHAM:  Just to give us an idea of the size of the properties, as well as the location, and when it was sold, to be used for.  With the property in San Jose, was that a property that the UC system had purchased at one point?


MR. MEACHAM:  We need to check and get back to you.  My recollection is that part of it, if not all of it—I think perhaps all of it—had been owned by the state of California previously.  And whenever the agriculture research station was established—it was transferred from the state to the university—but we can get you that information.


SENATOR DENHAM:  Thank you.  And my question pertaining to that piece of property, it was my understanding that that was originally an endowed piece of property that—wasn’t that a piece of property by the Winchester Mystery House?


MR. MEACHAM:  It’s not too far away, yes.


SENATOR DENHAM:  Yes.


MR. MEACHAM:  That general area.


SENATOR DENHAM:  Because my further question is, the UC system obviously is in a different situation and that many of your properties are endowed properties.  And if there is a property that you would like to sell that was an endowed property, what is the process that you’d have to go through, the hoops that you have to jump through, to be able to liquidate those types of properties?  And is it even possible in some scenarios?


MR. MEACHAM:  Well, believe it or not, we have a few properties that simply prohibit us from selling them.  It’s a matter of a deed restriction.  More typically, as I was indicating, if there’s a deed restriction that’s based on use by the university, it’s a situation where it goes back to the donor or the donor’s heirs; or if it’s turned into cash by a dint ?? of sale, then the cash is applied to the program as a matter of the deed restriction.

SENATOR DENHAM:  And each of the deeds can be very different?


MR. MEACHAM:  Oh, they can be different; they can be very specific; the can be very vague.  It varies all over the lot ??.


SENATOR DENHAM:  So a situation like the research facility in Tahiti, is that a property that could be sold off and utilize that funds for another program or another campus?


MR. MEACHAM:  Well, I would have to look at the terms of Mr. Gump’s ?? gift agreement in the deed to tell you in detail.  But in general, I can tell you that the university, apart from the terms of deeds and legal documents, is very sensitive to donor relations.  We depend on good donor relations, and we want to be careful, that in taking any action with any one particular donorative ?? situation, that we don’t create a situation where other donors, other prospective donors, start to wonder how well we carry out our public trust in handling properties for the purposes of which they were given to us.


SENATOR DENHAM:  Absolutely.  And I think that this body would not want to interfere in those donor relationships.  But at the same time, we have a public trust issue when it comes to the budget, and we’re looking at every possible area in the entire budget on where we can make cutbacks or come up with additional revenues, and so we’re going to be asking, as we already have, every department to take a look at those such opportunities and understanding that some of those properties may not be able to be sold or may not have the justification to sell, but we certainly want to leave that up to the UC system to make those decisions based on those relationships that can help us out in our decisions as well.

Property in Hawaii, is that property in a similar situation, or was that property sold off over the last few years?


MR. MEACHAM:  I have to confess, I’m unaware of property that the University of California owns.


SENATOR DENHAM:  How about the property, if you can research that—I believe that we have looked that up before—property in Mexico, Mexico City?

MR. MEACHAM:  Yes.  It was purchased to establish a study abroad program and research.


SENATOR DENHAM:  And that was the property that was utilized in General Fund dollars, not UC dollars, correct?  Or was it a partnership between the two?


MR. MEACHAM:  I think we should probably research that because I don’t have a clear recollection.


SENATOR DENHAM:  If you could get us information back on those three properties, as well as any others specifically that would be outside of the state of California, we would be very interested in that.


The property inventory that we do have, the property inventory that the UC system—my understanding—voluntarily gives to the Department of General Services, is that up to date?


MS. CHASTAIN:  Yes, it is, sir.  I should say, I don’t know if something has been acquired within, you know, the last 90 days, the last quarter, but we have been keeping it up to date.


SENATOR DENHAM:  But anything other than a short, a recent purchase, should be an inclusive list?


MR. MEACHAM:
 Yes.


MS. CHASTAIN:  Yes.


SENATOR DENHAM:  And is there a justification process or a performance-related process that you go through to evaluate each of your properties?


MR. MEACHAM:  You mean in terms of determining whether they’re surplus or just in general?


SENATOR DENHAM:  Specifically to properties that would be surplus properties.  I mean, I would assume that any property outside of, as you said, outside of a university must have some type of justification process if it’s an ag research center.  I’m certain that that meets a certain type of criteria or any of the research centers; do you have a criteria behind those?


MR. MEACHAM:  Yes, indeed.


SENATOR DENHAM:  Okay.  And you also have associated with each of those properties the maintenance, ongoing maintenance, of those properties?


MR. MEACHAM:  Yes.


SENATOR DENHAM:  The list that you talked about, the 11 properties, actually the 15 properties before that are declared surplus right now, is that a complete list of all properties that would be deemed surplus by the UC system, or is there a separate list aside from that?


MR. MEACHAM:  No.  And to clarify—the 15 is comprised of 11 properties sold over the last three fiscal years, and the balance are properties that have been found to be surplus but which are awaiting sale, and both lists are complete.


SENATOR DENHAM:  And as the property is declared surplus, I assume they go through this justification process.  And then does the Board of Regents make a determination on whether that’s a property that ultimately is defined surplus?  Or how does that process…


MR. MEACHAM:  The regents--there isn’t a separate step, if you will, of the regents determining that a property is surplus and then going to market with it.  The regents consider the sale transaction and the process of approving the sale transaction to find that it’s surplus.


SENATOR DENHAM:  And is it an open-bid process?


MR. MEACHAM:  We’re required to sell program-related real estate under the requirements of the Stull Act, the portion of the Public Contracts Code.  And essentially it requires public notice and seal/sale-bid ??, competitive-bid situation.  There are some exceptions for sales to public agencies and sales under $500,000 and the like, but essentially it’s a competitive-bid situation.


SENATOR DENHAM:  And the regents would also have the final say on the sale price of each of these different properties?  I mean, they are the ones that approve the final sale?



MR. MEACHAM:  Yes.  But in the case of the competitive-bid process, we’re required to take the high bid.  It’s a pretty straightforward process, so there’s not a whole lot of discretion on the regents’ part as to who to sell the property to.  It’s whoever made the high bid.


SENATOR DENHAM:  Have you looked at the California Performance Review and the high-value properties that are in that, in that list?


MR. MEACHAM:  Yes.  It was sometime ago, though, I have to confess, I looked at it.

SENATOR DENHAM:  I would ask you the same thing that I’ve asked each of the other departments, if you could not only go back and look at what properties that could be declared surplus but specifically look at that California Performance Review.  We’re asking every department to come back with recommendations.


And then the final question I have is, there was a recent article in the San Francisco Chronicle which indicated the UC president’s home and Kensington is in need of serious repairs, as much as $10 million.  What is the status of the maintenance of all of the properties statewide?  Is there an ongoing maintenance program for each of the properties that are outside, again, outside of the specific university themselves?


MR. MEACHAM:  Well, as part of the annual budget process for the university, there is allowance made in the budget for the maintenance of plant, existing buildings, and utility systems and the like.


I’m sure you have heard university representatives over the last few years note their budget concerns and those translate into having to make some hard choices as to whether to spend the money on maintaining plant, maintaining academic programs and such, and making hard choices.  The first priority goes with the maintenance dollars maintaining academic buildings and research facilities, and Blakehouse ?? has generally not had a lot of money put into it because it hasn’t been viewed as being as high a priority, and in fact some of what is required there is not really so much deferred maintenance as what under by current codes would have been considered poor construction back when the house was built several decades ago and requires just basic starting over again in terms of a foundation that meets current seismic standards and the like, so it’s a difficult combination of circumstances there.

SENATOR DENHAM:  The circumstances behind each of these properties is an ongoing tenant ?? improvement, or is it a part of a recruiting mechanism to bring people to a specific university or to hire, you know, one of, for this case, the president, is it part of a recruitment bonus to actually allow them to come here?


MR. MEACHAM:  Well, I would say, with respect to the president of the university and the chancellors of the university, there is a longstanding tradition in academia that you provide residences for them, and so Blakehouse really kind of stems from that.  The broader issue of the maintenance of buildings and utility systems, a part of it is general maintenance; part of it is upgrading, for example, cabling, to make sure that it’s highest standard, current standard of information technology can be maintained.  In California, of course, we have an ongoing issue of seismic capacity, so each campus has a priority for retrofitting buildings, and that requires a great deal of expenditure of funds.


SENATOR DENHAM:  I think what this committee is trying to get at is a better understanding of the general maintenance and upkeep on each of these different properties as opposed to some that we would consider frivolous on a very difficult year.  I mean, we’re going through some very difficult decisions in this year’s budget, and I for one certainly don’t want to be embarrassed by hearing of $30,000 dog runs in the same year that we’re increasing fees or cutting classroom sizes in the UC system.

So I know Senator Florez had some questions about the Kensington home, and I certainly have questions when it comes to, you know, the properties that are closer to my districts, like UC Santa Cruz, but there have been a number of these that have happened over the last several years, and it goes, you know, along with our consideration, certainly, when it comes to the budget, and best utilizing the taxpayer’s dollars as we’re monitoring.


Happy, did you have anything you wanted to add?


MS. CHASTAIN:  Nothing further, other than I have to say the university would concur with your fiscal concerns.  I don’t look for extraordinary expenditures in that respect.


SENATOR DENHAM:  Thank you.

Questions from members?

Thank you very much for being here today.


MR. MEACHAM:  Thank you.


SENATOR DENHAM:  And we look forward to—we’re also going to provide a list of questions but certainly look forward to an update on the questions that we already proposed.


MS. CHASTAIN:  We will, Senator.


MR. MEACHAM:  Certainly.


MS. CHASTAIN:  Thank you.


MR. MEACHAM:  Thank you.


SENATOR DENHAM:  Next we would ask for Timothy Frank from Sierra Club.  As well, we’d also ask Tina Andolina.  No.  One more time.  There we go.


MR. TIMOTHY FRANK:  There we go, thanks.  Tim Frank representing Sierra Club California.  Thank you.  I appreciate this.

SENATOR DENHAM:  Tina, thank you.


MS. TINA ANDOLINA:  Tina Andolina at the Planning and Conservation.  I thank you so much for the invitation to join you today.


SENATOR DENHAM:  Thank you.


MR. FRANK:  Yes.  I wanted to start by actually remarking on something that DGS said early on.  They noted that they think that it is a good idea to develop for the range of agencies to have land management plans, and I’d like to note that we actually do support that general idea and think that frankly that the land management plans should reflect and be consistent with the state land use priorities, as established by AB 857, and I know this is a consistent theme that we’ve been raising for a number of years, but I think this is another opportunity to raise that issue, and I’d be excited to see some movement in that direction.


I think the reason why you really wanted to bring me in here though was to actually have a conversation about CEQA, and I understand the senator’s concern about his bill getting vetoed year after year and no consistent message coming out of the administration.  I think we can actually provide you a fairly consistent message.  We actually do not think that a statutory exemption is needed, that there is in fact a categorical exemption available for disposal of surplus property, and there are a number of other categorical exemptions that could be used in particular instance this year as, for instance, with the disposal of parks because there’s a categorical exemption for the parks.


If you were to sell a piece of state property to a local government for use as a park, they could actually use that.  Now the advantage of using the categorical exemptions, from our perspective, is that there’s some actual safeguards.  So, for instance, if you had a property that was contaminated or something like that, we think that it would be appropriate to make sure that you actually do an environmental review.  And if you look at the categorical exemption for disposal of state property, it clearly provides, that if there is a toxic issue, that you actually do need to actually do the analysis, and we think that’s appropriate.


So the safeguards that are built into the categorical exemptions, we think, are important to maintain.  And that’s one reason why the conservation community in general actually prefers the use of the categorical exemptions to the establishment of new statutory exemptions.  You know, from our perspective…


SENATOR DENHAM:  Are there any exemptions that you have supported or would support where you do see an exemption specifically where it’s not a same-use property.  Obviously there’s an exemption that’s provided when it’s a same-use property.  A perfect example of that we’re going to hear from next is Soledad where there’s a wastewater treatment plant.  It’s going to continue to be a wastewater treatment plant.  There is not need for a CEQA review.

MR. FRANK:  And our contention here is that the existing law actually provides them.  They could actually operate under a categorical exemption.  They could have been provided that, that they don’t really need a statutory exemption in order to proceed.  We disagree with the administration about that.  We actually think that your bill granting the, directing them to dispose of that property, should have been approved without a statutory exemption and that the department could have actually  proceeded on that basis.


SENATOR DENHAM:  What about other high-value properties?  One that comes to mind is the AT&T park that the legislature decided to exempt CEQA on was their position that was taken.


MR. FRANK:  Well, we would actually not have preferred to see the exemption to CEQA.  See, we actually think that use of the categorical exemptions is a preferable route.

SENATOR DENHAM:  Okay.  Please continue.


MR. FRANK:  I mean, there are a number of reasons for that, one of which is that, you know, frankly, if you actually established the statutory exemption, and then DGS actually issues a notice of exemption, you may in some instances find yourself with a problem or you’re in fact segmenting a project.  You don’t want to actually do that.  That’s something that would be illegal.  We don’t want to see that.

 And then as I noted, we really do want to protect the existing provisions that basically make sure, that in an instance where you really do have environmental problems, whether it’s an issue of there being habitat on a location or whether it’s contaminated property or something like that, that we actually do the environmental study.  I mean, this is a staple of the environmental activism for a long time.  We actually think that analyzing the real environmental issues and mitigating them is the right approach.

SENATOR DENHAM:  Thank you.


Other testimony.


MS. ANDOLINA:  Thank you.  I’ll just make a couple of really quick comments.  The Planning and Conservation League doesn’t feel like CEQA is the impediment to disposing of these properties.  The problem is the line in the sand saying that every bill that comes to the governor’s desk must have this exemption regardless of whether or not, A, it’s needed, or, B, it’s warranted.

Tim Frank pointed out a couple of instances if there’s habitat or if there’s toxics where you would indeed want an environmental review, a full environmental review, of the property.  In most cases, that’s not necessary and you would just do the categorical exemption or another exemption and be done with it.  So CEQA itself isn’t requiring a full-blown environmental review of every parcel that is considered for sale.  Our problem is with the sort of line in the sand, that regardless of the situation on the ground, regardless of the facts, whether or not there’s habitat, whether or not it’s a toxic waste site, there ought to be a statutory exemption for CEQA.


SENATOR DENHAM:  And have either of you or both of you sat down with the Department General Services to explain this concern?


MR. FRANK:  I have not, but I’d be happy to do that because we actually do think that they have full authority to dispose of properties at this point and that the barrier here is really their own that they’re putting in place.


SENATOR DENHAM:  Do you have suggested language that…


MR. FRANK:  Well, as you noted in earlier testimony here that there are actually properties that they’ve been disposing of.  You know, the only issue here is that they’re actually saying, well, no more—they don’t want any new legislative—I mean, no new laws that actually direct them to dispose of properties but they’re disposing of state properties that are already in their hands on which they already think they have the authority to do that.  There’s no reason why they shouldn’t allow legislation such as yours to proceed and then sign the bill and then go ahead and dispose of the property.  And then at that point, they could either use this categorical exemption.  Or, if it turns out that there was a problem, that there was some contamination on a site, they do an EIR, but that would be appropriate to do in that instance.  Or, you know, they could even use a negative declaration if they thought there was some contamination, that the actual project would not entail any environmental impacts.  They could actually go through the initial review and do a ____ declaration.  As long as nobody challenged them, they’d be fine.


SENATOR DENHAM:  Well, thank you, and I would ask—you know, this is obviously a big concern for all of us.  You know, our goal, again is this year to sell off as many properties that aren’t being used to be able to fill this deficit hole that we have, not only this year but in future years.  And the biggest impediment at least is being utilized right now is the CEQA exemption.  If a CEQA exemption is not needed, we certainly would like to work on language that would satisfy not only both parties but all interested parties throughout the state.  So I’d ask you to—we will work to put that meeting together because we certainly have bills that are moving forward right now.  The Cow Palace is one of them, the LA Coliseum. We have our regular DGS bill, the omnibus bill that’s moving forward, all that we would hope can be scored in this year’s budget.  And so not having two parties having discussions is, I think, concerning to all of us.  We want to work on that language so that we can solve this problem quickly.

MR. FRANK:  Terrific.


MS. ANDOLINA:  Absolutely.


SENATOR DENHAM:  Thank you.

MS. ANDOLINA:  Thank you.

SENATOR DENHAM:  Appreciate your testimony.


MR. FRANK:  You bet.


SENATOR DENHAM:  And finally, a topic that we’ve all been talking about, not only over the last several years but certainly has been passed around quite a bit today.  We invite the Mayor of Soledad up to discuss the property in Soledad that has had an exemption, has not had an exemption, has…

MAYOR RICHARD ORTIZ:  Thank you, Senator.  Thank you very much.  As a matter of fact, I was overjoyed when I got the call that this hearing was taking place.  I set my suit out to the cleaners to be here.  So I’m glad this is taken on again, you know, the challenges of getting rid of a surplus property.  And the city of Soledad has struggled, along with the assistance of the senator here, that has been real gracious for three years trying to get the city to purchase the surplus property that the Department of Corrections had there.  It had abandoned an old sewer plant, and the need of the city of Soledad occur because Mother Nature took course in regards to a year that we had a wet year and our sewer plants went sour on us and we were facing some health and safety issues in regards to possible contamination of the Salinas River Basin water system there.  So we knew that the city had a property there that wasn’t being utilized, so we asked if we could purchase—and, of course, they told us that it couldn’t be just outright purchased.  We’d have to go through the legislative system.


So anyway, Senator Denham graciously took on the bill, and like I said, it was a struggle for three years trying to convince staff, the administration’s staff, in regards to whether we were exempt or not exempt or so on, and it was existing sewer ponds that were going to be continued as sewer plants if the city obtained ownership.

We went through a series of moratoriums in our community because of that reason, because of the reasons of Mother Nature messing up our old ponds and needed to get additional capacity, and that’s when we started looking at the surplus property of the corrections.  Every since then, we’ve tried all different angles through the assistance of Senator Denham’s office to try to figure out every year, how can we convince the governor not to veto this bill and with the assistance of even the governor’s staff that would assure us that we wouldn’t have difficulties, that we wouldn’t have problems, and it would go through the Assembly; it would go through the Senate without any problems and 100 percent votes for it, no opposition on it, and go through all the committees without any struggle.  But, yet, when it got into the Governor’s Office, he vetoed it because of the CEQA.


And this last turn around that it went to the governor, he actually signed the bill of the sales, but then he also had the conditions added to it, that it would revert to DGS for lease.


SENATOR DENHAM:  Was there ever any explanation given to you by anybody from DGS on why that veto message explained the lease rather than the sale of the property?


MAYOR ORTIZ:  No.  But I know that prior to it reaching the Governor’s Office, as it was going before the Assembly, they kept on trying. The Office of the Governor was trying to convince the city of Soledad that it would be easier for the city to lease rather than to sell, and I could never understand why, but we had a need for that property because it would allow us to borrow against that property for bonding issues, you know, to be able to continue the upgrades in their facilities and upgrading that same facility.  But they never shared with us the information about why the governor was so set on leasing.


When we started negotiating with DGS—I’m sorry—excuse me.  I’m sorry to say this, but I hear DGS talking two sides of the mouth, you know, one saying one thing about properties, sales, and also properties not being sold because of lease agreements that they have, you know.  We struggled with that issue with DGS because they kept on insisting that they receive the governor’s directory ?? not to sell the property, although the governor had signed it to sell or lease and I can’t remember what else.  There was a message on there but they could never interpret that message to the city of Soledad, but we’re here again asking to see if it’s possible that that particular piece of property be put on the market again for sale because we are interested in becoming full ownership of that property.  It’s not going to be anything else but a sewer pond.  It can’t be used for anything else but sewer ponds, especially in the location that they are.

So we’re hoping that, you know, that in the near future, and if you continue to, which the senator has already indicated directions to a lot of departments in regards to getting back information about surplus properties and continue to try to sell them, to try to bring in money for the budget, I understand that.  And we, the city of Soledad, was committed to pay whatever market, fair market value, was for that property.  But still again, it fell through, through the cracks somewhere.  They couldn’t see putting that money in the budget.  They’d rather hang onto the piece of property because we were even considering disregarding the piece of property and doing some upgrades and doing some condemnations in another area that would facilitate our needs.  But we had already invested a lot of money into those ponds and trying to get them to meet today’s standards in water treatment.  We had spent over a million dollars already the first year just trying to upgrade them; and we thought, well, we better go a little bit further with it because we want to be able to recover some of our costs that we put into those facilities.

So it’s been an uphill battle.  We haven’t reached level plateaus yet with it, so we’re hoping that in the near future that these properties will be put again up for sale and, again, we’re willing to pay, you know, market value, whatever that is.  It’s never been a question of, give it to me.  We’re willing to pay for whatever it’s worth, you know, whatever market value is for that piece of property.  And we’ve always felt that it was fair because it would be from one agency to another agency.  It wasn’t being sold to a private individual.  It was being sold to a city that had a need.  So I’m hoping that you know, you’d consider those, the city of Soledad, in your new ventures to try to put more properties out there and hoping that you do put this property also again on the market, for we do still have an interest in trying to purchase it.  We’re still right now, at that date, negotiating with DGS, trying to get a good agreement, at least for the near 66 years that we’re trying to—we wanted 100 years, a 99-year lease, that would make it worth the while for the city of Soledad but they claim we can’t.  So we settled on a 66-year lease, but it’s still pending.  They still haven’t signed it.  We haven’t gotten the final signatures on the lease, but we prefer owning that piece of property.  It has not value to anyone else.  The Department of Corrections doesn’t want to continue in the sewer system, so why would they want to hang onto a piece property that has no value to it?


SENATOR DENHAM:  And from a long-term planning perspective, either the correctional facilities—Soledad or Salinas Valley—have never expressed an interest in purchasing that property or keeping that property for themselves on a long-term basis?


MAYOR ORTIZ:  They have not.  They haven’t discussed that with the city of Soledad of showing an interest to continue developing that area because right now the city of Soledad is providing services.  We’re taking on their air fluents.  By the way, the air fluents that were collected from the Department of Corrections is almost two-thirds of what the capacity of our sewer plant is taking on right now.  It’s two-thirds that we’re servicing.


For the last six months or almost a year, they were overcapacity because we have an agreement with the Department of Corrections to service them for their air-fluent water and it’s been way over capacity.  And, of course, that takes an impact on our facility and for our residence also because, when that occurs, we have to limit the amount of permits that are allowed for new residents in their community.

So we’re hoping, we’ve got a project right now that would rebuild our old facilities.  We have a $67 million project right now to upgrade our facilities.  And in that project is included those ponds from the Department of Corrections which we’re trying to incorporate into those projects, and that’ll give us a growth pattern for at least our 20-year projection growth of the general plan of the city of Soledad.  But without it, again, it’s very difficult to secure funding because that’s one of the things that they start looking at, is, well, if you don’t own it, how can you put permanent structures on it and et cetera and et cetera?  You know, that becomes a city property.


SENATOR DENHAM:  And at what point did the city of Soledad determine that this was a piece of property not only available for purchase but the need for the purchase by the city?  Can you tell me what year that was?


MAYOR ORTIZ:  I’m going to say 2006 when we found out that there was a need—no—I take that back—it was 2005 when the need arose that—and, you know, it’s funny because we talked with the Department of Corrections, and they didn’t have a problem selling that piece of property or leasing it to us.  Either way, they would be comfortable because they knew that we were servicing their needs also.  But it was 2005 when the situation occurred and we started negotiating with the Corrections.


SENATOR DENHAM:  And during the last three-and-a-half years, has any state agency, including the administration, ever expressed a reason why they would not want to sell that?  I mean, is there any need or state justification on why this property would need to be held by the state and leased rather than sold?


MAYOR ORTIZ:  No, no.  Senator, no one has ever come across telling us the reasons of why the Department of Corrections or the Department of General Services would want to retain that piece of property.  It has no value to anyone.  It might have a little value to the Department of Corrections if they went into the sewer facility processing, but that facility is even too small to accommodate their own needs.  So it’s too small for them to operate, so there’s really no need.  And they haven’t been able to justify to us why they would like to keep it under property role as a surplus property, you know.

It’s isolated.  I don’t know if you, if it’s some movie you don’t understand.  But that particular piece of property is isolated from the main body of the Department of Corrections’ properties, which is Salinas Valley, and the CTF property.  Those properties are 980 acres where those two facilities are.  The sewer ponds that we’re talking about is almost half a mile away from the institution.  They sit close to the river basin of the Salinas River.  And so they’re isolated, separated from the actual body of correction of the facilities.  So again, you know, the need, if there were, if today the city of Soledad says, we’re going to discontinue the service of correction and discontinue the use of those ponds, they’d have no value.  They’d sit there, you know, unless somebody else was going to start up a sewer company but those are very far and few.  You know, permitting process is very difficult. Even for the city of Soledad, it’s very difficult to obtain permits and operational permits from Water Quality.

SENATOR DENHAM:  Thank you.  And this property in particular, we are certainly asking the Department of General Services, as well as every other department, to come up with a list of properties that can be sold immediately.  This is certainly one property, in your opinion, that can be sold this year, for this year’s budget process?


MAYOR ORTIZ:  Yes, it could, very much, if, again, the restrictions are lifted through, to the Department of General Services, because they’re telling us, when we were trying to negotiate the lease that we indicated that the governor did sign the bill for sale or lease, as indicated on there, and other commitments that he wasn’t clear on, that could never justify to us and we prefer buying it and we indicated that to the Department of General Services but they kept on saying, we can’t do that because we have direct orders from the Governor’s Office not to sell.  So I think we need or this body needs to also look at the possibilities of what transactions go between staffs and departments because they’re receiving a message from the Governor’s Office, I guess, is my understanding, and I think that’s the avenue that also needs to be explored by this committee.


SENATOR DENHAM:  Mayor, we appreciate your testimony today, and this is certainly another area that we’re going to try to address in this year’s budget, and we appreciate all of you taking the time to come up here today.


MAYOR ORTIZ:  Thank you very much.  And again thank you again, Senator, for all your help that you’ve given us in the past in this particular bill, and I know you’ll continue to check in that.  Thank you.


SENATOR DENHAM:  Absolutely.  Thank you.


At this time, this is the conclusion of our hearing.  We do have time for public comment if there’s anybody that would also like to add anything at this time.


COUNCILMEMBER JUAN SAAVEDRA:  Good afternoon.  First of all, I want to start by thanking you for all the assistance that you have given to us as regards to the city of Soledad.


Let me start over again.  My name is Juan Saavedra, city councilmember, city of Soledad.  I just want to reiterate the comments that Mr. Mayor has indicated to you, and I would strongly encourage you to proceed as to the recommendations that have been expressed here before you.  I want to make it very short because it’s been a long morning for you, and I just wanted to thank you very much for your support.  Thank you.


SENATOR DENHAM:  Councilman, thank you for your testimony.


If there’s no further comment, this will conclude this afternoon’s GO hearing this morning and this afternoon’s GO hearing.  I appreciate your patience and certainly appreciate your testimony.  Thank you.
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